Agenda
For enquiries on this agenda, please
contact:
Martin Newton 020 8547 6086
martin.newton@kingston.gov.uk
This agenda is available on:
www.kingston.gov.uk
Published on 22 April 2021

Licensing Sub-Committee
Date:

Tuesday 4 May 2021

Time:

9:45 am

Place:
An online meeting that can be viewed at
https://kingston.public-i.tv/core/portal/webcast_interactive/505284
Members
The Sub Committee will consist of three of the following Members: Councillors: Stephanie Archer, Lorraine Dunstone, Simon Edwards, Ed Fram, Hilary
Gander, Dennis Goodship, Lesley Heap, Ian George, Katrina Lidbetter, Dave Ryder-Mills,
Malcolm Self, John Sweeney, Margaret Thompson, Jon Tolley and Olly Wehring.

Everyone is welcome to attend the meeting
This agenda is available to view on: www.kingston.gov.uk
You can also access this agenda through the Modern.gov app or by scanning the QR code
with your smartphone.

Agenda
Changes to the Application
The applicants are advised of issues raised in representations from residents and the
Responsible Authorities - Police, Fire Service, Environmental Health, Noise and Health
and Safety. In discussions with the various parties on these the applicant may agree to
accept conditions and/or propose changes to the original application.
The law allows discussions to continue up to the time of the Licensing Sub-committee
hearing, often in good time before the hearing. As a result of these discussions, changes
to the original application may have been made and representations may have been
withdrawn. It will not always be possible to include these emendations in the agenda. The
hearing regulations require that should any party to the hearing wish to rely upon any
additional evidence, this should be served upon the Licensing Authority five days before
this hearing.
At the start of the hearing the Licensing Officer will explain any changes that the applicant
has made, conditions agreed with Responsible Authorities, and whether any additional
evidence has been served on the Licensing Authority.
Recording of the meeting
This meeting will be recorded and the recording will be available on the web site
(www.kingston.gov.uk) with the agenda and minutes.

1.

Appointment of Chair

2.

Declarations of Interest

3.

Zonco Ltd, trading as Feals Catering - Application for Street
Trading Licence - Footpath at junction of Wood Street and
Skerne Road, Kingston upon Thames

4.

Urgent Items Authorised by the Chair

Appendix A

Exclusion of the Press and Public
5.
The following matters may be considered in private if the Committee agrees that, under
Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public are excluded from the
meeting on the grounds that it is likely that exempt information, as defined in paragraph 1
of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act, would be disclosed. This paragraph covers
information relating to any individual.

Procedure at Licensing Sub Committees
ORGANISATION OF THE COMMITTEE
1. Licensing Sub-Committee hearings are currently being held remotely due to the
Coronavirus pandemic. All parties to the hearing are invited to join a video conference
where they will be given the opportunity to speak.
HEARING PROCEDURE
2. The hearing is broadcast live on the Council’s YouTube channel and a recording is
made available shortly after the hearing is concluded.
3. The Sub-Committee Members are assisted by
I. Committee Secretary
II. Legal Advisor
III. Licensing officer – who is not party to the Hearing
4. The above officers are there to give advice and technical guidance to the SubCommittee and do not participate in the hearing or decisions other than to clarify legal
or technical matters.
5. The Committee Secretary and the Legal Advisor are the only officers who retire with
the Sub-Committee.
6. The Licensing Officer is independent and there to provide specific advice relating to the
application before the Sub-Committee.
7. A hearing will take the form of a discussion led by the Chair of the Sub-Committee
which will hear from people in the following order:
a) The Licensing Officer will outline the application, the representations that have been
made and the outcome of any discussions;
b) The applicant(s) or their representatives;
c) Relevant Responsible Authorities that are making representations;
d) Interested parties being those persons or bodies (local residents/businesses) who
are making relevant representations or their representatives;
e) The Petitioner (where a petition has been submitted) or other interested party that
has signed the petition.
8. All parties to the hearing will be given equal opportunity to put their case to the
Sub-Committee.
9. If a local resident or business holder who has submitted a valid representation is
unable to attend the hearing, they can nominate a representative to speak on their
behalf. The Licensing Authority must be informed in writing of the name of the
representative 24 hours before the hearing. The representative will be able to read the
original letter of objection and any statement given to them by the objector which
amplifies or updates the comments made in the letter. The representative will not be
able to answer questions on behalf of the objector.
10.If a local resident or business holder who has submitted a valid representation and
attends the hearing wishes to nominate someone to speak on their behalf, they must
advise the Committee Secretary of the name of their representative on arrival at the
hearing. The representative will be able to read the original letter of objection and any
statement given them by the objector which amplifies or updates the comments made
in the letter. The representative will be able to answer questions on behalf of the

objector after consulting them on the answer to each question.
11.Cross-examination is generally not permitted. However, at the discretion of the SubCommittee, questions may be permitted through the Chair only where the SubCommittee feel it necessary for the clarification of an issue or to elicit further
information in a particular case.
12.The Sub-Committee are permitted to ask questions throughout the hearing of any party
or other person who appears as a witness or representative.
MAKING THE DECISION
13.Once the Sub-Committee has heard from officers and the parties to the hearing and
has had answers to its questions, the Sub-Committee will usually withdraw to make its
decision on the application.
14.The Sub-Committee will announce its decision by email, and a full decision notice with
reasoning will be sent within 5 working days.
15.The Sub-Committee has a duty to behave impartially, not to predetermine the issue
and not to discuss matters with the media or any of the parties. In making its decision
the Sub-Committee must give reasons to support that decision. It must state the
reasons why applications are refused or revoked.
16.The decision and reasons for the decision will be recorded in the minutes of the
meeting. These will be circulated and will be available on the Council’s website.
Background papers – held by Gary Marson – Democratic Services – 020 8547 5021, email
gary.marson@kingston.gov.uk
These documents can also be found on www.kingston.gov.uk
i. Statement of Licensing Policy – 12 July 2016
ii. Licensing Hearing procedures – 23 May 2018

A1

Appendix A

Licensing Sub Committee
4 May 2021
ZONCO LIMITED trading as FEALS CATERING
FOOTPATH AT THE JUNCTION OF WOOD STREET AND SKERNE ROAD
KINGSTON UPON THAMES
Application for a Temporary Street Trading Licence under the London Local
Authorities Act 1990 (as amended)
Report by the Licensing and Environmental Compliance Team Leader
PURPOSE
To determine the application, by Public Hearing, following receipt by the Licensing
Authority of relevant representations.
This sub-committee hearing is to consider the application, having regard to the
representation and relevant guidance, with the following options being available:
DECISION TO BE MADE:
1) Grant the application as it currently stands.
2) Grant the application subject to such conditions or restrictions as the authority
considers appropriate.
3) Refuse the application on the basis of one or more of the grounds set out in the
legislation.
INTRODUCTION
1. This application for a Temporary Street Trading Licence was made on 25 February
2021 by Mr Mehran Zonouzi, Director of Zonco Limited.
2. The application seeks a Temporary Street Trading Licence valid for a period of 6
months, to permit the trade of hot and cold food from a pitch on the footpath at the
junction of Wood Street and Skerne Road, Kingston upon Thames, Monday to
Saturday from 10:00 hours to 17:00 hours.
Relevant pages of the application form, including a plan of the pitch location, are
attached at Annex 1.
3.

The proposed hours of operation are laid out in Annex 2.

BACKGROUND
4.

The Council has determined that it will regulate street trading from pitches in the
Borough under the London Local Authorities Act 1990 (as amended).

A2
5.

Section 21(1) of the 1990 Act defines street trading as being ‘the selling or exposing
or the offering for sale of any article, and the purchasing of or offering to purchase
any ticket, and the supplying or offering to supply any service, in a street for gain or
reward’.

6.

Section 25 of the Act outlines the application process for street trading licences, with
subsections 25(4)(b) and 25(6) detailing the reasons why an application may be
refused.

7.

The Council reviewed its Street Trading Policy in 2019 and a new Policy came into
effect on 1 May 2020. The Policy consists of 2 main parts. Part 1 provides some
background information on street trading, while Part 2 describes the different street
trading activities covered within the policy. Paragraphs 2.1 through to 2.20 are
relevant to this application.

8.

The Street Trading Policy must be read in conjunction with the Standard Conditions for
Street Trading, which also came into effect on 1 May 2020.

CONSULTATION
9.

I confirm that the Council has advertised the application by way of public notice
displayed at the site for a period of 28 days. The application has also been made
available on the Council’s website.

10.

I confirm that, in accordance with the Council’s Street Trading Policy, a copy of the
application was made available to all statutory consultees, including the Council’s
Highways, Planning, and Noise Pollution departments, the Council’s Equalities
Officer, and the Metropolitan Police.

11.

The Highways Department and the Equalities Officer made a representation to the
application. These representations are attached at Annex 3.

12.

Three further representations were received from other organizations. Copies
of the representations are attached at Annex 4.

LOCATION
13.

A map showing the location of the pitch applied for is attached as Annex 5.
Photographs of the area are attached as Annex 6.

FURTHER CONSIDERATIONS
14.

The Council recognises the positive impact street trading can have on an area, and
that it can add to the diversity of shopping opportunities and neighbourhoods in which
trading is carried out.

15.

However, street trading is not suitable for every area and poorly thought out trading
locations can present a range of difficulties to those looking to make use of public
highways, from obstruction to nuisance.

16.

Street Trading Licences are issued in order to control the location of trading activity
and to ensure pitches are located in suitable areas, are safe and accessible, and do
not cause nuisance or disruption to local businesses or residents.

A3
DETERMINATION
17.

In making their decision in respect of the application, the Sub-Committee must have
regard to the Council's own Street Trading Policy (attached at Annex 7), the London
Local Authorities Act 1990 (relevant parts of which are attached at Annex 8), as well
as to the representations made and the evidence heard.

18.

The reasons under which a Street Trading Licence application can be refused are set
out in the legislation (please refer to Section 25 of the London Local Authorities Act
1990 in Annex 8) and are summarised below.

19.

The Council may refuse an application for a Street Trading Licence if:
(a) The location is unsuitable;
(b) Trading in the street would cause undue interference or inconvenience to persons
or vehicles;
(c) The area is unsuitable for the applicant to trade without causing undue
interference or inconvenience;
(d) There are sufficient traders in the street, or at premises adjoining it, who are
trading in the articles the applicant wishes to trade; or
(e) The nature of the articles, things or services in which the applicant wishes to trade
would adversely affect the general amenity of the area;
(f) The applicant has made a false statement in connection with the application;
(g) The applicant is unsuitable to hold a street trading licence;
(h) The applicant has failed to avail himself of a previous street trading licence;
(i) The applicant has had a licence revoked (or could have been revoked) on the
grounds that fees or other charges due to the council were not paid;
(j) The applicant has failed to provide information required by the council to deal
with the application;
(k) The applicant has failed to provide suitable arrangements for storing the vehicle,
stall or other items from which they propose to trade.

20.

The licensing sub-committee is asked to determine the application, having regard to
the representations received and any evidence heard at the hearing, in accordance
with the following options:
•

Grant the application as requested;

•

Grant the application subject to such conditions or restrictions as the authority
considers appropriate;

•

Refuse the application.

CONDITIONS
21.

Standard Conditions. If granted, the licence would be subject to the Standard Street
Trading conditions attached at Annex 9. However the Licensing Sub-Committee
can impose additional conditions if appropriate and proportional.

CONTENT OF ANNEXES TO THIS REPORT
Annex 1
Annex 2
Annex 3

Application Form
Proposed hours of operation
Representations from Statutory Consultees

A4
Annex 4
Annex 5
Annex 6
Annex 7
Annex 8
Annex 9

Representations from other organizations
Pitch Location Plan
Photographs of Location
Kingston’s Street Trading Policy
Part III of the London Local Authorities Act 1990 (as amended)
Standard conditions

BACKGROUND papers are held by Marcella Basso, Environmental Protection Officer 020 8547 5080, marcella.basso@kingston.gov.uk

ANNEX 1
A5
Official use only:

Date received
Case Ref:

Payment received

THE ROYAL BOROUGH
OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES
APPLICATION FOR A TEMPORARY STREET TRADING LICENCE - more than one day
LONDON LOCAL AUTHORITIES ACT 1990 (as amended)

Application for a temporary Street Trading licence valid for a period between two days and six months
at a specified location. PLEASE CONTACT THE LICENSING TEAM BEFORE MAKING AN
APPLICATION.
Please complete all questions on the form. If you have nothing to record, please state ‘not applicable’ or ‘none’.
If you are completing this form by hand, please write legibly in block capitals using black ink. You may wish to
keep a copy of the completed form for your records.
You must ensure that your application is submitted at least 35 days before you wish to start trading.
Any application received after this time may be rejected. The fee is not refundable.
Part 1 – Personal details (licence is held in the name of an individual and cannot be held in a company name)
1. Full name of applicant (must be individual)

Mehran Zonouzi
2. Home address (including postcode)

3. Date of birth
4. Email address

5. Telephone number

6. Trading name of business (if any)

Zonco Limited as Feals Catering trademark
Part 2 – Details of activity
7- Where do you wish to trade? (Give street name and exact location and provide a
plan)
Designated place at Wood street junction of Skerne road footpath

6

A6

8. Days you wish to trade

All week days except than Sunday

Monday

Tuesday

Wednesday

Friday

Saturday

Sunday
7

Thursday

A7
9. Please give dates (if applicable) and times you wish to trade

A maximum days of temporary licensing for
all week days except than Sunday from 10 am
to 5 pm
10. If trading on private land do you have written authority from the Landowner / Tenant
Provide contact details including a contact telephone number

Yes

No X

11. Describe the structure from which you intend to sell goods or services (e.g. stall, vehicle, stand etc.)
and give approximate size
Length

7m

A Burger Van
Width

2.3 m

Height

2.8 m

12. Articles, goods, or services in which you wish to trade (full details of the commodities list adopted by
Kingston Council are available on our website)
Clothing

Flowers

Fruit & Vegetables

Pre-packed Groceries

Household Goods

Toiletries & Cosmetics

Kitchen / Dining

Soft Furnishings

Electrical & Audio/Visual

Travel Accessories

Jewellery & Accessories

Stationary

Toys

Tools, DIY & Gardening

Furniture

Sports Equipment

Pet Supplies

Arts & Crafts
Hot & Cold Food

Textiles

Miscellaneous
(ready to eat) Food and soft beverage

8

A8
13. Sale of Food Only
(a)
Name and contact telephone number of the Local Authority where the business is registered

Kingston & Sutton Shared Environment Service

(b)
Give details of Food Hygiene training for you and any staff (e.g. Foundation in Food Hygiene
Certificate)
Name: Mehran Zonouzi

Qualification:

Name: Ario Zonouzi

Qualification:

(c)

Level 2
Level 2

Date:
Date:

State the type of food(s) which will be sold

Burgers, Hotdogs, French-fries, Soup, Cold and Hot Beverages
(d)

State the location of toilet facilities to be used:

The customers could use the Bentall Toilet facilities
(e)
Is there a documented hazard analysis system, such as Safer Food Better Business (SFBB) for
your food operation?
Yes
No X
(f)
Please state what hand washing equipment you will use, e.g. sole use portable WHB/shared
use WHB
The Hand sanitizers and Tissue papers will be provided freely
(g)

Please state what equipment washing facilities you will use, e.g. single sink/double sink

A double sink is installed inside of van.
See guidance note at end of application for further information.
14. Address where the receptacle / stall will be stored outside trading hours

The van will be transferred and parked in a privet parking in
modern
15. Have you traded in this borough before? Yes X No
If yes give details

16. Do you hold a street trading licence in this or any other London borough? Yes X No
If yes give details

Part 3 – Important Notes

9

A9
The following MUST be submitted with your application:
a)
The appropriate fee. See schedule of licensing fees on www.kingston.gov.uk
b)

Two full face passport sized photographs. See guidance note over page for details

c)
Evidence of Public Liability Insurance cover to the minimum value of £5,000,000 for street trading d) A
plan of the proposed location

Part 4- Signature
The form must be signed by the applicant.
I wish to apply for a temporary street trading licence and confirm that the information given by me on this
form is correct. I realise that giving false information could lead to prosecution and the loss of any licence
granted.
Signature:

Print Name:
Mehran
Zonouzi

Date:
19/02/21

See over page for details on how to pay
Please note that the granting of a temporary street trading licence does not permit road closures or suspension
of parking bays. Applications for road closures and/or suspension of parking bays will need to be made
separately to the Council’s Highways Department and will incur separate fees and charges.
Freedom of information
The Freedom of Information Act gives people the right to obtain information held by public authorities unless
there are good reasons to keep it confidential. Please be aware that information supplied on this form may be
released in response to a freedom of information request. To comply with financial regulations, details of
license holders may also be disclosed to authorised Government agencies.
APPLICATION FOR A TEMORARY STREET TRADING LICENCE - GUIDANCE TO APPLICANTS
We would expect an application to be made a minimum of 35 days before you wish to start trading.
Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames applicants:

10

A10

ANNEX 2

ZONCO LIMITED t/a FEALS CATERING
FOOTPATH AT THE JUNCTION OF WOOD STREET AND SKERNE ROAD
KINGSTON UPON THAMES
Proposed street trading licence valid for 6 months
Day
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday

Activity: Sale of hot and cold food
10:00-17:00
10:00-17:00
10:00-17:00
10:00-17:00
10:00-17:00
10:00-17:00
No trade

26/03/2021

ANNEX 3

A11

RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Re: New application for a temporary (6 months) street trading licence under the
London Local Authorities Act 1990 - Footpath at the junction of Wood Street and
Skerne Road (My ref 043707)
1 message
Younes Hamade
To: RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

2 March 2021 at 14:31

Dear colleague
Further to your email, i am objecting on this application on the basis of the following:
According to section 25 (4) (b) shall not be granted unless the borough council are satisfied that there is enough
space in the street for the applicant to engage in the trading in which he desires to engage without causing undue
interference or inconvenience to persons or vehicular traffic using the street. Hence, the proposed location in an
area does not have enough space to accommodate the number of footfall and cyclists as the area is shared use
without interfer and inconvenient them, and blocking the existing advertising panel, where the Council will be
charged by JCDeaux for lost of revenue as a result of such obstruction;
Secondly according to The 2020 Act sets out licence should not granted if there is obstruction on the highways,
and i consider this vehicle is an obstruction on the highways;
Finally according to the Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 places duties on local authorities, to have due
regard to: the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, advance equality of opportunity between people who
share a protected characteristic and those who don’t, and foster or encourage good relations between people
who share a protected characteristic and those who don’t. and i am with the opinion such vehcile will
disadvantage disable people especially visialimpaired.
I hope the above is of any help.
Younes Hamade, Bsc , Msc , MIHE
Senior Professional Engineer
Kingston Town and Surbiton Neighbourhoods
Strategy and Commissioning
Kingston & Sutton Shared Environment Service
Kingston upon Thames, Surrey,
KT1 1EU

W www.kingston.gov.uk

Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Displaying

https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0z_eZFOD0DlxniCH2-6gc0DWGOGOGCGLaLhWQPAX_DRKasB/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&per…

1/2

25/03/2021

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Re: Comment on application for a temporary street trading licence at the junction of Wood S…

A12

RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Re: Comment on application for a temporary street trading licence at the junction of
Wood Street and Skerne Road (ref 043707)
1 message
Francis Arokiasamy
To: James Bassett
Cc: "licensing@kingston.gov.uk" <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

25 March 2021 at 08:23

Dear James and Marcella
Thank you for your comments and concerns raised with regard to this application.
I do agree with the concerns and observations raised
Best wishes
Francis

On Wed, 24 Mar 2021 at 18:01, James Bassett <

wrote:

Dear Marcella,

We at KCIL were asked to comment on this application, and after reviewing the documents we would like to raise the
following concerns;

The application does not make clear how the pathways will be affected by the addition of the van. This location already
contains obstacles to navigation in the form of the many sign and lamp posts so it is important to see how the van will fit
within the space and whether the remaining clear pathways will still meet the current accessibility standards. This
however is not currently possible as, though the application provides the vans dimensions, the specific placement of
the vehicle is different on each of the three images.

We are also concerned about how queues will be handled, especially while social distancing is in effect and queues
have become physically longer as a result. A crowd or line of people around the van could further obstruct the current
pathways, as well as interfere with the use of the adjacent crossing - not only as a physical obstruction but by
potentially blocking visibility of oncoming traffic from around the corners of the junction.

Thirdly, this location is a shared pedestrian and cycle space, with the preceding cycle path joining this shared space via
a very sharp turn with limited visibility due to the bridge, greenery, and large advertisement board immediately before
the corner. This could potentially lead to dangerous accidents as cyclists join the shared pavement unaware of the van,
and potential crowd of customers, just around the corner. This is especially concerning to those Kingston residents we
represent, whom may not be able to hear or see the oncoming cycles in time, or may lack the mobility to evade one
should a collision be about to occur.

I hope these notes will prove useful in making your decision.

Kind Regards,
https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0z_eZFOD0DlxniCH2-6gc0DWGOGOGCGLaLhWQPAX_DRKasB/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&per…

1/2

25/03/2021

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Re: Comment on application for a temporary street trading licence at the junction of Wood S…

A13

James Bassett
Access Facilitator
Kingston Centre for Independent Living

The majority of the KCIL Team are working remotely during this time, please call 020 8546 9603 and your call will be
redirected to them.
Alternatively email: enquiries@kcil.org.uk and we will get back to you as soon as possible

Tel: 020 8546 9603
31-35 High Street
Kingston KT1 1LF
www.kcil.org.uk

KCIL is a company registered in England No. 06240260. Registered Charity No. 1123063

To unsubscribe from receiving future mailings click here.

https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0z_eZFOD0DlxniCH2-6gc0DWGOGOGCGLaLhWQPAX_DRKasB/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&per…

2/2

A14

ANNEX 4

Delivered by email
24 March 2021
Marcella Basso
Licensing Team
Kingston & Sutton Shared Environment Service
Royal Borough of Kingston Upon Thames
Dear Marcella
New application for a temporary (6 months) street trading licence - Wood Street and Skerne
Road
Kingston First has been championing the business community of Kingston town centre since 2005
and represents 750 businesses and organisations operating in Kingston. Our mission is to support
Kingston as a successful and thriving town centre, providing a range of projects and services to
improve the town for businesses and organisations, and their customers, clients and employees.
Our commitment is to support the use of vibrant spaces which complements and enhances the
town’s offer. We are therefore writing to strongly object to the temporary application for a street
trading licence at the junction of Wood Street and Skerne Road. Our reasons are outlined below:
1.

2.

3.
4.
5.

It competes with and further saturates a challenging take-away food, drink and hospitality
sector in the town centre. This has only been exacerbated by the devastating impact of
Covid-19, forcing many ‘bricks and mortar’ businesses (paying business rates, living wages
and other taxes) to adapt their model to takeaway.
Covid-19 is creating significant strain on bricks and mortar consumer facing businesses. Any
further commercial activity only exacerbates this strain and risks contributing to increased
vacancy rates and decreasing businesses’ ability to survive through the pandemic.
A burger van opposite the Bentall Centre is not a complementary offer. It will compete with
the plans for a food operator to be part of the mix for the old TGI Fridays site.
The applicant makes reference to the use of the Bentall Toilet facilities for their customers.
The Council’s Public Toilet Access Strategy needs to provide a framework for the effective
and coordinated provision of public toilets in the town centre.
At a time when the Council, Kingston First and Business Community is working hard to
improve the public realm and perception of the town, this proposed use is not in keeping
with the ambitions of the Re-Imagining Kingston Town Centre’s Streets and Spaces Strategy,
a joint strategic blueprint for improving public spaces and connections across the town
centre undertaken by Kingston Council, Kingston First and Kingston University.

Kingston First
Neville House
55 Eden Street
Kingston upon Thames
KT1 1BW

T: 020 8547 1221
E: info@kingstonfirst.co.uk
kingstonfirst.co.uk

VAT no. 711 168 464
Company registered in England no. 3838618

Page 1

A15

We are also confirming that we will object to any street trading application for additional commercial
activity - retail, food and drink in the streets and spaces of Kingston town centre.
Yours sincerely

Adrienne Hawkins
Project Manager

Page 2

A16
Broadwall House, 21 Broadwall, London
SE1 9PL
T: 020 3096 7000

Our Ref:
Email:
Date:

W: www.firstplan.co.uk

19047/GD/ik
24 March 2021

Licensing Department
Royal Borough of Kingston Upon Thames
Guildhall 2
High Street
Kingston upon Thames
KT1 1EU
Dear Sir/Madam
OBJECTION TO APPLICATION FOR A TEMPORARY STREET TRADING LICENCE
JUNCTION OF WOOD STREET AND SKERNE ROAD
We write on behalf of our client, Bentalls Department Store, to object to the application for a street trading
licence at the above location. The application seeks a street trading licence for a burger van to be positioned
at the junction of Wood Street and Skerne Road, opposite the entrance to the Bentalls department store
(Wood Street, Kingston Upon Thames, KT1 1TP). Our client has a number of concerns relating to the proposed
use as set out accordingly below.
Amenity
Bentalls is a highly regarded department store which sells luxury brands of clothing fashion, accessories,
beauty, childrenswear and homeware. It is therefore important to provide a representative high quality
shopping experience for customers, which includes both the environment within and outside of the store.
Our client is concerned that the location of a burger van immediately opposite the entrance to the store is
not complementary to the high-end retail offering inside the store. This is firstly in terms of the odour from
the cooking of hot food at the burger van, which will travel in to the store through the Wood Street entrance
as customers enter and leave. It is our client’s firm view that cooking smells inside the store will be
detrimental to the quality of the shopping experience expected by customers. There are also concerns about
the level of additional litter associated with the use, as there are no refuse and recycling bins/facilities within
reasonable distance of the proposed location. It is noted that the Council’s ‘Street Trading Policy’ document
(May 2020) sets out that ‘the nature of the articles, things or services in which the applicant wishes to trade
would adversely affect the general amenity of the area’ is a material reason for refusal of a Street Trading
Licence, as governed by Section 25 of the London Local Authorities Act 1990.
Furthermore, the application proposes that customers of the burger van may utilise the toilets in the Bentall
Centre. This will result in additional pedestrian traffic through the Bentalls store to access the toilets. In the
coming weeks Covid restrictions will be eased, and from 12th April Bentalls will be reopening its doors to
customers after a long period of ceased in-store trading due to the national lockdown. In order to provide a
‘Covid-secure’ environment for their customers, Bentalls will be restricting the number of customers allowed
in the store at any time to facilitate social distancing measures. To have additional members of the public in
the queue to enter the store, merely to walk through for access to the toilets and not to purchase items will
increase the likelihood of Covid transmission within the store, posing a risk to Bentalls’ staff and customers.
Furthermore, this will increase the length of the queue and waiting times at peak periods, which would deter
Registered Office, Broadwall House, 21 Broadwall, London, SE1 9PL
Registered in England No. 4882565

A17

genuine customers from waiting to enter the store, resulting in a loss of trade for Bentalls. Our client is further
concerned that outside of store/shopping centre opening hours there are no alternative toilet facilities and
therefore customers may utilise the recessed entrances to the store as a toilet. Clearly this will result in an
unacceptable impact on the amenity of the area and poses a risk to public health.
Impact on Highway Safety
The proposed location of the burger van is at a busy road junction on the ring road, an area which is heavily
trafficked by both vehicles and pedestrians. The traffic levels are already exacerbated by customers queueing
to enter the shopping centre and town centre car parks and our client is concerned that the burger van would
attract kerbside parking whilst customers wait for their meals to be prepared. Furthermore, the placement
of a burger van in what is a small section of paved open space will cause crowds to gather, restricting
pedestrian flow along the pavement. In addition, this will make social distancing difficult which could result
in additional Covid transmissions to customers, again posing a risk to staff and customers of the Bentalls
store.
Our client is also concerned that the burger van and associated crowds, coupled with the two existing large
format advertisement billboards would present a distraction to drivers and have a detrimental impact on
highway safety. The proposed location is directly adjacent to a busy road junction of a complex layout
incorporating pedestrian crossings and the entrance approach to the town centre car park. This junction
already requires additional concentration from drivers to safely navigate. It is considered that the additional
distraction and pedestrian activity could present a real risk to pedestrian and highway safety.
Both of the above reasons are set out in the Policy document as genuine reasons for refusal: ‘trading in the
street would cause undue interference or inconvenience to persons or vehicles’.
Image of Kingston Town Centre
Finally, our client considers that the proposed burger van in this location does not align with the objectives
of the Council, Kingston First and local businesses, who are striving to make Kingston a more attractive place
for visitors, customers and businesses. This includes maintaining and improving the public realm, enhancing
the general amenity of the town centre and protecting the interests of businesses based in Kingston. For the
reasons set out above, it is considered that the burger van would detrimentally impact on the amenity of the
store and the safety and experience of customers and staff and therefore would not protect the interests of
this longstanding business.
Conclusion
I trust that the above is clear in setting out our client’s concerns and we therefore request that the street
trading licence is not granted in this case. If you wish to discuss any of the points above in further detail,
please do not hesitate to get in touch via the details provided overleaf.
Yours sincerely

GEMMA DAVIS
Associate

2

25/03/2021

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Comment on application for a temporary street trading licence at the junction of Wood Stree…

A18

RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Comment on application for a temporary street trading licence at the junction of
Wood Street and Skerne Road (ref 043707)
1 message
James Bassett
To: "licensing@kingston.gov.uk" <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

24 March 2021 at 18:01

Dear Marcella,

We at KCIL were asked to comment on this application, and after reviewing the documents we would like to raise the
following concerns;

The application does not make clear how the pathways will be affected by the addition of the van. This location already
contains obstacles to navigation in the form of the many sign and lamp posts so it is important to see how the van will fit
within the space and whether the remaining clear pathways will still meet the current accessibility standards. This
however is not currently possible as, though the application provides the vans dimensions, the specific placement of the
vehicle is different on each of the three images.

We are also concerned about how queues will be handled, especially while social distancing is in effect and queues have
become physically longer as a result. A crowd or line of people around the van could further obstruct the current
pathways, as well as interfere with the use of the adjacent crossing - not only as a physical obstruction but by potentially
blocking visibility of oncoming traffic from around the corners of the junction.

Thirdly, this location is a shared pedestrian and cycle space, with the preceding cycle path joining this shared space via a
very sharp turn with limited visibility due to the bridge, greenery, and large advertisement board immediately before the
corner. This could potentially lead to dangerous accidents as cyclists join the shared pavement unaware of the van, and
potential crowd of customers, just around the corner. This is especially concerning to those Kingston residents we
represent, whom may not be able to hear or see the oncoming cycles in time, or may lack the mobility to evade one
should a collision be about to occur.

I hope these notes will prove useful in making your decision.

Kind Regards,

James Bassett
Access Facilitator
Kingston Centre for Independent Living

The majority of the KCIL Team are working remotely during this time, please call 020 8546 9603 and your call will be
redirected to them.
https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0z_eZFOD0DlxniCH2-6gc0DWGOGOGCGLaLhWQPAX_DRKasB/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&per…

1/2

25/03/2021

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Comment on application for a temporary street trading licence at the junction of Wood Stree…

A19

Alternatively email: enquiries@kcil.org.uk and we will get back to you as soon as possible

Tel: 020 8546 9603
31-35 High Street
Kingston KT1 1LF
www.kcil.org.uk

KCIL is a company registered in England No. 06240260. Registered Charity No. 1123063

To unsubscribe from receiving future mailings click here.

https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0z_eZFOD0DlxniCH2-6gc0DWGOGOGCGLaLhWQPAX_DRKasB/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&per…

2/2

A20

ANNEX 5

A21

ANNEX 6

A22

A23

ANNEX 7

ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES

STREET TRADING POLICY

1 MAY 2020

A24

1.

Background

1.1. This Policy has been drawn up in order to provide a framework around which
the Council controls Street Trading, including trading from pitches, advertising
boards and shop front displays.
1.2. The Policy sets out the reasons why trading is controlled and the matters that
prospective licence holders should consider before making an application for
a licence.
1.3. Licences are issued subject to conditions which are set out in a separate
document - Standard Conditions for Street Trading - and this Policy should be
read in conjunction with those conditions.
1.4. This Policy was drawn up following a process of engagement carried out in
2019. In carrying out this consultation the Council engaged with statutory
consultees, residents, business and licence holders. Letters were sent to all
existing licence holders and stakeholders, and the consultation was widely
publicised to residents and businesses through the councils website, social
media channels, and public noticeboards. The Policy was developed in
conjunction with a working group consisting of elected members and officers
from stakeholder departments.
1.5. The Policy will be formally reviewed every five years, and in accordance with
the requirements of the Legislation, any such reviews will be subject to
consultation, particularly with existing traders and local residents.
What is Street Trading?
1.6. The Council has determined that it will regulate street trading in the Borough
under the London Local Authorities Act 1990 (as amended) and the Highways
Act 1980 (as amended).
1.7. Section 21(1) of the 1990 Act defines Street trading as being ‘the selling or
exposing or the offering for sale of any article, and the purchasing of or
offering to purchase any ticket, and the supplying or offering to supply any
service, in a street for gain or reward’.
1.8. For the purposes of this legislation a ‘street’ is defined in the same Section of
the Act and includes ‘any road or footway and other area within 7 metres of
any road or footway, to which the public have access without payment’.

A25

1.9. The Council has also determined to licence the use of freestanding
advertising objects (A-boards) and the placing of tables and chairs on the
highway under part VIIA, Section 115(a) of the Highways Act 1980.
Activities to which this Policy relates
1.10. This Policy sets out the regulatory framework, application process and
conditions of licensing for the following activities:
■ Street Trading from pitches
■ Shopfront Licensing
■ Freestanding Advertising materials (e.g. A-boards)
■ Tables and chairs on the highway
1.11. Other activities that include an element of street trading are controlled and
enforced through different legislation and are not covered by this policy, for
example the sale of motor vehicles on the highway.
1.12. This Policy does not apply to trading on private land which is greater than 7m
away from a public highway, nor does it apply to trading within the Ancient
Market Place in Kingston town centre which operates under the benefit of the
Borough’s Royal Charter.
Street Trading Activities
2.

Application process

2.1.

The application process for each of the street trading activities to which this
Policy relates are set out on our website at www.kingston.gov.uk and
includes a specified application form, supporting information requirements
and payment of the appropriate fee.

2.2.

Applications will be subject to a period of public consultation for 28 calendar
days together with direct consultation with statutory consultees including
the Highways Authority and the Metropolitan Police.

2.3.

Where an application receives relevant objections, the case will be referred
to the next available Licensing Sub-committee hearing for determination.
The applicant and anyone making an objection will be given the opportunity
to speak at the hearing.

A26

Trading from Pitches
2.4.

The Council recognises the positive impact street trading can have on an
area, and that it can add to the diversity of shopping opportunities and
neighbourhoods in which trading is carried out.

2.5.

However, street trading is not suitable for every area and poorly thought out
trading locations can present a range of difficulties to those looking to make
use of public highways, from obstruction to nuisance.

2.6.

Street Trading Licences are issued in order to control the location of trading
activity and ensure pitches are located in suitable areas and do not cause
nuisance or disruption to local businesses and are safe and accessible.

2.7.

As part of the process of considering whether to issue a licence, the
Council will make sure that trading locations do not cause obstruction to the
highway, including lines of sight at junctions, and are positioned so as not
to obstruct rights of way, entry to premises or cause nuisance to nearby
residents. The Council will also consider the suitability of the proposed
street trading in relation to the existing neighbouring retail outlets with the
aim of ensuring the balance is kept between encouraging new street
trading and protecting the amenities of the neighbourhood. Conditions
attached to licences will be designed to ensure that these factors are
controlled for the duration of the licence period.

2.8.

Prospective applicants for Trading Licences are recommended to
familiarise themselves with the Standard Conditions and to ensure that their
proposed trading locations:
■ Provide a minimum of 1.5m of space for pedestrians to pass safely
■ Do not block access to existing premises (even if those premises are
vacant)
■ Are located such that they will not cause nuisance from smells, light
or noise (including shouting)
■ Allow for all trading materials and waste arising from activities can be
removed by the licence holder at the end of the trading period

2.9.

The Council has resolved to adopt a commodities list, given at Appendix A,
which details a number of types of goods or services that Licence Holders
can be licensed to trade in.

A27

Street Trading Licences - Designated Streets
2.10.

The Council has determined that street trading from pitches will be
permitted within certain designated streets in the Borough as set out in
Appendix B.

2.11.

Applications can be made for locations within these areas. Successful
applications will be granted a street trading licence for up to three years
which permits trading from vehicles, trailers and stalls at a permitted
location during the hours specified on the licence.
Period of Licence

2.12.

Applicants making an application for the first time will, if successful, be
given a licence of 12 months duration in order to assess the longer term
suitability of trading at the location. Subsequent renewals of the licence by
the same licence holder will then be granted, at the Council's discretion, for
up to 3 years.
Local Benefit

2.13.

The Council consider that it is important for street trading activities to
compliment the range of trading offered by businesses in the area.

2.14.

Applications for street trading licences from those wishing to trade in
products or services that enhance the range of options in the area will be
more readily accepted, as will those whose trading provides local benefit
(i.e uses local suppliers). The commodities list also assists the Council with
determining whether applications will provide local benefit.
Temporary Street Trading permits

2.15.

The Council has also determined that applications can be made for
Temporary Street Trading permits for any location within the Borough, even
if these are outside of the designated streets.

2.16.

A simplified application process is in place for Temporary Street Trading
permits, which can be obtained for trading during a continuous period
between 1 day and 6 months duration.

2.17.

Temporary Street Trading permits can only be used for trading on one day,
for multiple days in one week or on multiple days over consecutive weeks,

A28

however they cannot be used to provide trading on weeks that are not
consecutive, such as for one Saturday each month.
2.18.

Traders wishing to operate in this way will be required to apply for a
Temporary licence for each trading event, or make use of an annual street
trading licence or a Speciality Market licence.
Reasons for refusal of a licence

2.19.

The reasons under which a Street Trading Licence application can be
refused are set out in the legislation, however are summarised below. For
full details please refer to Section 25 of the London Local Authorities Act
1990.

2.20.

The Council may refuse an application for a Street Trading Licence if
(a) The location is unsuitable;
(b) Trading in the street would cause undue interference or
inconvenience to persons or vehicles;
(c) The area is unsuitable for the applicant to trade without causing
undue interference or inconvenience;
(d) There are sufficient traders in the street, or at premises adjoining it,
who are trading in the articles the applicant wishes to trade; or
(e) The nature of the articles, things or services in which the applicant
wishes to trade would adversely affect the general amenity of the area;
(f) The applicant has made a false statement in connection with the
application
(g) The applicant is unsuitable to hold a street trading licence;
(h) The applicant has failed to avail himself of a previous street trading
licence;
(i) The applicant has had a licence revoked (or could have been
revoked) on the grounds that fees or other charges due to the council
were not paid
(j) The applicant has failed to provide information required by the
council to deal with the application;
(k) The applicant has failed to provide suitable arrangements for storing
the vehicle, stall or other items from which they propose to trade

Tables and Chairs

A29

2.21.

The Council regulates the placing of tables and chairs on the highway
through a permit issued under the Highways Act 1980 (as amended).

2.22.

Any person wishing to place such items on the public highway must first
obtain a Tables and Chairs permit. This includes items such as tables,
chairs and barriers. These permits are sometimes referred to as Street
Cafes.

2.23.

Tables and Chairs (etc) placed on the highway can create problems for
various members of the community e.g people with disabilities, visual
impairments, mobility difficulties and those using pushchairs etc. Tables
and chairs can also make an area look cluttered or be unsightly.

2.24.

Controlling the placement of tables and chairs helps to ensure that
footpaths and walkways are kept clear of obstructions and everyone can
move about safely. For example, It may be necessary for tables and chairs
to be positioned in a consistent manner on busy streets so that a constant
and direct path through areas is maintained.

2.25.

Applicants looking to place tables and chairs on the highway are advised
that you must hold planning consent for the placement of the objects prior
to making an application. It is also recommended that you familairise
yourself with standard conditions that apply to these licences before
applying.
Freestanding Advertising Materials

2.26.

Advertising materials placed on the highway can create problems for
various members of the community e.g people with disabilities, visual
impairments, mobility difficulties and those using pushchairs etc.
Advertising can also make an area look cluttered, be unsightly and have a
negative impact on the street scene.

2.27.

The Council licences the use of freestanding advertising on pavements and
other open spaces in order to balance the needs of businesses with those
of pedestrians and traffic.

2.28.

We call these licences A-board licences, however they can relate to any
free standing advertising boards, directional signage,advertising of
promotional offers or other information signs or inanimate objects (such as
characters) placed on the public highway.

A30

2.29.

Controlling the use of on-street advertising through a licence scheme helps
to ensure that footpaths and walkways on or close to the public highway
are kept clear of obstructions and everyone can move about safely.

2.30.

Persons wishing to display freestanding advertising materials are strongly
recommended to familiarise themselves with the Standard Conditions and
to ensure in particular that requirements regarding space for other users of
the highway can be met in the proposed location.

2.31.

A licence is not required if advertising materials are placed on privately
owned land.
Shop Front Licences

2.32.

The display of goods outside the front facade of a premises can greatly
enhance the visual amenity and provide valuable additional sales space for
businesses to advertise their goods for sale. However, inappropriately
located shop front displays can create problems for various members of the
community e.g people with disabilities, visual impairments, mobility
difficulties and those using pushchairs etc.

2.33.

We require anyone wishing to place shop front displays on the highway to
apply for a licence so that we can balance the needs of businesses with
those of pedestrians and traffic. We call these ‘shop front licences’.

2.34.

When deciding whether a Shop Front Licence might be appropriate for your
business, prospective applicants should familiarise themselves with the
Standard Conditions and to ensure that the following requirements can be
met:
■ Provide a minimum of 1.5m of space for pedestrians to pass safely in
front of any display of goods
■ Do not block access to neighbouring premises (even if those premises
are vacant) or access to properties above your shop or premises.
■ Can be removed at the end of the trading period permitted by the
licence
■ The display does not cause damage to the highway

A31

APPENDIX A - COMMODITIES LIST
Applicants for a Street Trading Licence or Temporary Street Trading Permit must indicate
on their application the nature of articles or services that they will be trading from the location
requested. This list provides details of the commodities that can be selected. There is no
limit on the number of commodities that a Trader may select.
Clothing
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Women’s clothing
Men’s clothing
Children’s clothing
Baby wear
Sportswear
Clothing accessories i.e. hats, scarves, ties, belts etc.
Underwear/nightwear
Footwear/slippers
Other items (must be specified)

Flowers
●
●
●
●
●
●

Cut flowers and plants
Uncut flowers and plants
Artificial flowers
Flower accessories i.e. pots, food, hanging baskets etc.
Seasonal i.e. Christmas Trees, Holly, Mistletoe etc.
Other items (must be specified)

Fruit and Vegetables
●
●

Raw fruit / vegetables
Other items (must be specified)

Pre-packed Groceries
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Dried fruit, seeds, pulses, beans etc.
Cheese and diary
Meat / fish
Bread / cake
Deli food i.e. olives, pickles, nuts etc.
Confectionary
Other items (must be specified)

Household Goods
●
●
●
●
●
●

Cleaning products
Laundry products
Cleaning utensils
Plastic storage and accessories e.g. crates, boxes etc.
Light bulbs
Other items (must be specified)

A32

Toiletries and Cosmetics
●
●
●
●
●

Toiletries
Hair products
Make-up
Perfume
Other items (must be specified)

Kitchen / Dining
●
●
●
●
●

Cookware
Serve ware
Glassware
Tableware
Other items (must be specified)

Soft Furnishings
●
●
●
●
●
●

Cushions & throws
Bedding
Curtains and blinds
Rugs & mats
Dining linen
Other items (must be specified)

Electrical & Audio/Visual
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Audio/amplification equipment
Visual/display equipment
Computer hardware and accessories
Games consoles
Musical instruments
Cameras
Electrical accessories
Other items (must be specified)

Travel Accessories
●
●
●
●

Luggage
Sports bags
Handbags
Other items (must be specified)

Jewellery & Accessories
●
●
●
●
●
●

Costume jewellery
Precious jewellery
Hair accessories
Sunglasses
Watches
Other items (must be specified)

A33

Stationary
●
●
●
●
●

Office supplies
Paper
Greetings cards
Wrapping supplies/gift bags
Other items (must be specified)

Toys
●
●
●
●

Children’s Toys
Outdoor games and toys
Baby/nursery equipment
Other items (must be specified)

Tools, DIY and Gardening
●
●
●
●

Tools
Garden tools
DIY supplies
Other items (must be specified)

Furniture
●
●

Furniture including antiques
Other items (must be specified)

Sports Equipment
●
●
●
●
●

Exercise equipment
Track & field
Golf
Sports equipment
Other items (must be specified)

Pet Supplies
●
●
●
●
●

Pet food
Pet beds
Pet cages/hutches/tank/carriers
Grooming and care supplies
Other items (must be specified)

Arts and Crafts
●
●
●
●
●

Art
Sculpture
Craft items
Handmade textiles
Other items (must be specified)

Textiles

A34

●
●
●
●
●

Fabric
Haberdashery
Yarn/Wool
Knitting/Sewing supplies
Other items (must be specified)

Miscellaneous
●

Other items not in any category above (must be specified by the applicant)

Hot and Cold Food (ready to eat)
●
●
●
●

Hot food - specify (prepared at the stall e.g. fish & chips, hot potatoes, kebabs,
burgers, hot dogs, sandwiches, pies)
Cold food - specify (prepared at the stall e.g. sandwiches, wraps, ice cream, ice
lollies, salads, sushi)
Hot drinks
Cold drinks

The Council has determined that the following commodities will be given special
consideration before holders of Street Trading Licences, Temporary Street Trading Permits
or Speciality Markets are licensed to trade:
Special Consideration Commodities
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Alcohol
Any form of gambling
Cigarettes / tobacco
Explosives including Fireworks
Firearms (including replicas) and ammunition
Live animals
Medicines and drugs (including prescribed) or treatments
Second-hand electrical goods
Sex articles (as defined by the Local government (Miscellanious Provisions) Act
1982)
Goods and Services considered by the Council to pose a health and safety risk to
the public

A35

APPENDIX B - DESIGNATED STREETS
The Council has determined that street trading from pitches will be permitted within certain
designated streets in the Borough. The following streets have been designated for this
purpose:

Applications for street trading from a pitch can be made in the following areas (whole
length of road unless specified):

Kingston Town Neighbourhood

Maldens & Coombe Neighbourhood

Clarence Street / Eden Street / Church
Street / Little Wood Street / Wood Street /
Fife Road / Wheatfield Way / Thames Side /
Cromwell Road / High Street / Queen
Elizabeth's Road / Union Street / St
James’s Road / Old London Road / Thames
Street / Bishops Hall / Eden Street /
Surbiton Rd (Penrhyn Road to Maple
Road) / Richmond Road (Railway Bridge to
Richmond Park Road) / Lower Ham Road
(Kings Walk to Half Mile Tree also land
adjacent to the river and Canbury Gardens)
/ Kingston Hill (Park Road to Galsworthy
Road) / Crescent Road (Kingston Hill to
Kingsnympton Park) / Kingston Vale (Robin
Hood Lane to A3 junction) / Grasmere
Avenue (Derwent Avenue to Robin Hood
Way) / Robin Hood Way (100 yards either
side of Grasmere Avenue) / Coombe Road,
Norbiton (London Road to Wolverton
Avenue) / Park Road, Kingston (Clifton
Road to Kings Road) / Washington Road,
Cambridge Road Estate / Villiers Avenue
(Lower Marsh Lane to Cranes Park Avenue)
/ Hawks Road / Cambridge Road / Jack
Goodchild Way (entrance to the
Kingsmeadow Stadium) / Kingston Road
(Cambridge Road to Railway bridge)

High Street, New Malden / Coombe Road (
Cambridge Avenue to Railway Bridge) /
Blagdon Road (High Street to car park
entrance) / Kingston Road (Elm Road to
Montem Road) / Malden Road (Cromwell
Avenue to High Street) / Burlington Road
(High Street to Walton Avenue and Queens
Road to Albert Road) / The Fountain
Roundabout (all pavement within 75 yards
of the roundabout) / The Triangle / Kenley
Road (Dickerage Road to Arundel Road) /
Manor Drive North (Railway bridge to
Gainsborough Road) / Malden Manor /
Wellington Crescent, Industrial Estate /
Malden Road (Church Road to Malden
Green Avenue) / South Lane (157 to 171
outside South Lane shops)

A36

Surbiton Neighbourhood

South of the Borough Neighbourhood

Victoria Road / St James’ Road (Victoria
Road to St Philips Road) / Claremont Road
(St James’ Road to The Crescent) / St
Marks Hill / Brighton Road (Maple Road to
Railway Bridge) / Maple Road / Alexandra
Drive & Raeburn Ave (Pavement outside of
the adjacent shops) / Berrylands Road
(Ewell Road to King Charles Road) /
Tolworth Broadway (North side) / Ewell
Road (86 to Browns Road, Hollyfield Road
to Broomfield Road, Red Lion Road to
Tolworth Broadway, and Warren Drive
North to Tolworth Rise North) / Red Lion
Road (Fullers Avenue to Hook Rise North,
and outside Red Lion Business Park) /
Chiltern Drive (Surbiton Hill Park to
Berrylands Station) / Tolworth Rise South
(100 yards either side of Southwood Drive)

Tolworth Broadway (South side) / Hook
Road (Verona Drive to Elmcroft Drive and
Elm Road to Clayton Road / Hook Parade /
Hook Road Roundabout j/w Bridge Road
(all highway within 75 yards of the
roundabout) / North Parade / Cox Lane,
Industrial Estate / Davis Road, Industrial
Estate / Roebuck Road (Cox Lane to Drake
Road, Industrial Estate).

In addition, the whole borough is designated for the purposes of:
- applications for a temporary street trading licence (for trading between 2 days
to 6 months)
- licensing of shop front displays on the highway
- licensing of freestanding advertising materials on the highway

A37

ANNEX 8
London Local Authorities Act 1990
(As Amended by the London Local Authorities Act 1994, London Local Authorities Act
2004, and the London Local Authorities Act 2007)
PART III
STREET TRADING
Interpretation of Part III.
21.(1) In this Part of this Act "grant", unless the context otherwise requires, includes renew and renewal, and cognate words shall
be construed accordingly;
"ice cream trading" means the selling, exposing or offering for sale of goods consisting wholly or
mainly of ice cream, frozen confectionery or other similar commodities from a vehicle;
"itinerant ice cream trading" means ice cream trading from a vehicle which goes from place to place
remaining in any one location in the course of trading for periods of 15 minutes or less and not
returning to that location or any other location in the same street on the same day;
"licence street" means a street designated under section 24 (Designation of licence streets) of this
Act;
"receptacle" includes a vehicle or stall and any basket, bag, box, vessel, stand, easel, board, tray or
thing which is used (whether or not constructed or adapted for such use) as a container for or for the
display of any article or thing or equipment used in the provision of any service;
"street" includes—
(a) any road or footway;
(b) any other area, not being within permanently enclosed premises, within 7 metres of any
road or footway, to which the public obtain access without payment;
(i) whether or not they need the consent of the owner or occupier; and
(ii) if they do, whether or not they have obtained it;
(c) any part of such road, footway or area;
(d) any part of any housing development provided or maintained by a local authority under
Part II of the Housing Act 1985;
"street trading" means subject to subsection (1A) and (2) below
(a) the selling or exposing or offer for sale of any article (including a living thing); and
(b) the purchasing of or offering to purchase any ticket; and
(c) the supplying or offering to supply any service
in a street for gain or reward (whether or not the gain or reward accrues to the person actually carrying
out the trading);
"street trading licence" means a licence granted under this Part of this Act and valid for the period
specified therein being not less than six months and not more than three years;
"temporary licence" means a licence granted under this Part of this Act valid for a single day or for
such period as may be specified in the licence not exceeding six months.

A38

(1ZA) In this Part of this Act ”street trading" shall also include the selling or exposure or offer for
sale of any motor vehicle in the course of a business if the vehicle is—
(a) exposed or offered for sale on the internet; and
(b) kept on a street during the period when it is so exposed or offered for sale.]
(1A) In determining whether activity amounts to street trading for the purposes of this Act, the fact that
–
(a) a transaction was completed elsewhere than in a street in the case where the initial offer
or display of the article in question or the offer of service, as the case may be, took place
in a street;
(b) either party to the transaction was not in a street at the time it was completed;
(c) the articles actually sold or services actually supplied, as the case may be, were different
from those offered,
shall be disregarded.
(2) The following are not street trading for the purposes of this Part of this Act:(a) trading by a person acting as a pedlar under the authority of a Pedlar's Certificate granted
under the Pedlars Act 1871 (c96), if the trading is carried out only by means of visits from
house to house;
(b) anything done in a market or fair the right to hold which was acquired by virtue of a grant
(including a presumed grant) or acquired or established by virtue of any enactment or order;
(c) trading in a trunk road picnic area provided by the Secretary of State under section 112 of
the Highways Act 1980 (c66);
(d) trading as a news-vendor provided that the only articles sold or exposed or offered for sale
are current newspapers or periodicals and they are sold or exposed or offered for sale without
a receptacle for them or, if with a receptacle for them such receptacle does not—
(i) exceed 1 metre in length or width or 2 metres in height; or
(ii) occupy a ground area exceeding 0.25 square metre; or
(iii) stand on the carriageway of a Street; or
(iv) cause undue interference or inconvenience to persons using the street; and
(e) selling articles or things to occupiers of premises adjoining any street, or offering or
exposing them for sale from a vehicle which is used only for the regular delivery of milk or
other perishable goods to those persons;
(h) the doing of anything authorised by regulations made under section 5 of the Police,
Factories, &c. (Miscellaneous Provisions) 1916 (c31) or by permit or order made under Part
III of the Charities Act 1992 (c41);
(i) trading in a highway in relation to which a control order under section 7 of the Local
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 (c57) is in force, other than trading to which
the control order does not apply; and
(j) the selling or the exposure or offer for sale of articles or the provision of services on private
land adjacent to a shop provided that the selling or the exposure or offer for sale of the articles
or the provision of the services –
(i) forms part of the business of the owner of the shop or a person assessed for uniform
business rate in respect of the shop; and
(ii) takes place during the period during which the shop is open to the public for
business.
Application of Part III
22. This Part of this Act applies to the borough of a participating council as from the appointed day.

A39

Licensing of street trading
23. (1) Subject to the provisions of this Part of this Act it shall be unlawful for any person to engage in
street trading (whether or not in or from a stationary position) in any licence street within a borough
unless that person is authorised to do so by a street trading licence or a temporary licence.
(2) For the purposes of this Part of this Act a person shall be deemed to engage in street trading
whether or not he regularly carries on the business of street trading.
Designation of licence streets
24. (l) If a borough council consider that street trading should be licensed in their area they may from time
to time pass any of the following resolutions:—
(a) a resolution (in this Part of this Act referred to as a "designating resolution") designating
any street within the borough as a "licence street";
(b) a resolution specifying in relation to any such street or any part of a street any class or
classes of articles, things or services which they will, or other than which they will not, prescribe
in any street trading licence granted by them in respect of that Street;
and may from time to time by subsequent resolution rescind or vary any such resolution:
Provided that a borough council shall:
a. Before passing a designating resolution, consult with the Commissioner of Police of the
Metropolis on their proposal, and
b. Before rescinding or varying a designating resolution, consult with the licence holders
trading in the street in question, or a body or bodies representative of them, on their
proposal
(2) At the appointed day for the purposes of this Part of this Act in a borough, the streets prescribed
by any licences granted by the council of the borough in pursuance of powers contained in any of the
enactments referred to in column (2) of Schedule 2 to this Act and then in force shall be deemed to
have been designated as licence streets under a designating resolution.
(3) If a borough council pass a designating resolution the designation of the street shall take effect on
the day specified in the resolution (which must not be before the expiration of the period of one month
beginning with the day on which the resolution is passed).
(4) A borough council shall not pass a resolution or rescind or vary a resolution under this section
unless (a) they have published notice of their intention to do so in a local newspaper circulating in
their area;
(b) they have served a copy of the notice on the highway authority for that street (unless they
are that highway authority); and
(c) where subsection (5) below applies, they have obtained the necessary consent.
(5) This subsection applies—
(a) where the resolution relates to a street which is owned or maintainable by a relevant
corporation; and
(b) where the resolution designates as a licence street any street maintained by a highway
authority;
and in subsection (4) above "necessary consent" means (i) in the case mentioned in paragraph (a) above, the consent of the relevant corporation; and
(ii) in the case mentioned in paragraph (b) above, the consent of the highway authority.

A40

(6) The following are relevant corporations for the purposes of this section:—
(a) British Railways Board;
(b) London Regional Transport;
(d) Network Rail Infrastructure Limited; and
(e) Transport for London.
(7) The notice referred to in subsection (4) above shall—
(a) contain a draft of the resolution to which it relates; and
(b) state that representations relating to it may be made in writing to the borough council within
such period, not less than 28 days after the publication of the notice, as may be specified in
the notice.
(8) As soon as practicable after the expiry of the period specified under subsection (7) above, the
borough council shall consider any representations relating to the proposed resolution which they
have received before the expiry of that period.
(9) After the borough council have considered those representations, they may if they think fit, pass
such a resolution relating to the street as is mentioned in subsection (1) above.
(10) The borough council shall publish notice of the passing of such a resolution in a local newspaper
circulating in their area on two consecutive weeks.
(11) The first publication shall not be later than 28 days before the day specified in the resolution for
the coming into force of the designation.
Application for street trading licences
25. (1) An application for a street trading licence or renewal of such a licence shall be made in writing to
the borough council, and in the case of an application for the renewal of a licence shall be made not
later than two months or earlier than three months before the date on which that licence unless
revoked or surrendered will cease to be valid:
Provided that nothing in this section shall prevent a borough council from renewing a licence, other
than a temporary licence notwithstanding that application has been made for such renewal at a later
date than aforesaid if they consider it reasonable in the circumstances so to do.
(2) In the application, the applicant shall state—
(a) in the case of an application by an individual, his full name and address and date of birth;
(b) in the case of an application for a licence to carry on ice cream trading—
(i) by a company incorporated under the Companies Acts, the name of the company
and its registered office;
(ii) by a partnership, the names of its members and the address of its principal office;
(c) the licence street in which, the days on which and the times between which he desires to
trade;
(d) the description of articles, things or services in which he desires to trade; and
(e) such other particulars, relevant to street trading, as the borough council may reasonably
require;
and may in the case of an individual specify the name and address of a relative of his who is
associated with, or dependent upon, the business of street trading in respect of which the application
is made and to whom he desires the licence to be granted in any of the events specified in subsection
(1) (a) of section 26 (Succession) of this Act.

A41

(2A) In the case of an application for a street trading licence which, if granted, would authorise street
trading on land which falls within paragraph (b) in the definition of ‘street’ in subsection (1) of section
21 (interpretation of Part III) of this Act, the applicant shall provide evidence in writing(a) That he has consent to trade on the land from the owner of the land in question; or
(b) That he is the owner of the land in question.
(3) In the case of an application by an individual the applicant shall, with his application, hand to an
authorised officer three identical clear full photographs of himself(a) without sunglasses; and
(b) unless on religious grounds the applicant permanently wears headgear, without headgear,
Taken within the preceding 12 months, each photograph being signed by the applicant on the reverse.
But the borough council may, at their discretion, accept a lesser number of photographs.
(3A) If a standard condition prescribed under regulations made under subsection (3) of section 27
(Conditions of street trading licences) of this Act requires third party insurance cover the applicant
shall produce to an authorised officer proof of such third party insurance cover before a licence is
granted.
(3B) A borough council may make regulations prescribing the procedure for determining applications.
(3C) Before making or amending such regulations the borough council shall –
(a) consult any body which appears to the borough council to represent licence holders; and
(b) give consideration to any representations received within 28 days of the date on which the
borough council’s proposals were notified to the body concerned.
(4) A street trading licence—
(a) shall not be granted—
(i) to a person under the age of 17 years; or
(ii) except where the application is made by a company incorporated under the
Companies Acts, or by a partnership, for a licence to carry on ice cream trading to a
person, on a corresponding day, days or time, who holds a street trading licence in any
other licence street granted under this Part of this Act but nothing in this paragraph
shall prevent the renewal of such a licence; or
(iii) except where the application is made by a company incorporated under the
Companies Acts, or by a partnership, for a licence to carry on ice cream trading to a
body corporate or to an unincorporated association; or
(iv) in respect of an application for a licence which is not a temporary licence to trade
in a street which is not a licence street; or
(v) where the street to which the application relates is a street in respect of which the
borough council have by resolution passed under subsection (1) (b) of section 24
(Designation of licence streets) of this Act specified a class of articles or things, or
services which they will not prescribe in any street trading licence and the grant of the
licence would be contrary to any of the terms of that
resolution;
(b) shall not be granted unless the borough council are satisfied that there is enough space in
the street for the applicant to engage in the trading in which he desires to engage without
causing undue interference or inconvenience to persons or vehicular traffic using the street.
(c) shall not be granted in the case of an application for a street trading licence which, if
granted, would authorise street trading on land which falls within paragraph (b) in the definition
of ‘street’ in subsection (1) of section 21 (interpretation of Part III) of this Act, unless the
applicant has provided sufficient such evidence as is mentioned in subsection (2A) above to
satisfy the council.

A42

(5) Subject to subsection (4) above, the borough council shall grant an application for a street trading
licence unless they consider that the application ought to be refused on one or more of the grounds
specified in subsection (6) below.
(6) Subject to subsection (8) below the council may refuse an application on any of the following
grounds:—
(a) that there are enough traders trading in the street or in any street adjoining the street in
respect of which the application is made in the goods in which the applicant desires to trade;
(b) that the applicant is on account of misconduct or for any other sufficient reason unsuitable
to hold the licence;
(c) that the applicant is an individual who has without reasonable excuse failed personally to
avail himself fully of a previous street trading licence;
(d) that the applicant has at any time been granted a street trading licence by the borough
council which was revoked or could have been revoked on the grounds that he had refused
or neglected to pay fees or other charges due to them in respect of the licence;
(e) that the applicant has failed to provide or to identify suitable or adequate premises for the
storage of any receptacles or perishable goods in which he proposes to trade when street
trading is not taking place;
(f) that—
(i) the application is for the grant (but not the renewal) of a street trading licence; and
(ii) the only available position is in that part of the street which is contiguous with the
frontage of a shop; and
(iii) the articles, things or services mentioned in the application are sold or provided at
the shop;
(g) that—
(i) the application is for the grant (but not the renewal) of a street trading licence; and
(ii) the only available position in the street is within the curtilage of a shop; and
(iii) the applicant is not the owner or occupier of the premises comprising the shop.
(7) If the borough council consider that grounds for refusal exist under subsection (6) (a) or (c) above
they may grant the applicant a licence which permits him—
(a) to trade on fewer days or during a shorter period in each day than is specified in the
application; or
(b) to trade only in one or more of the descriptions of goods specified in the application.
(8) Subject to subsection (4) above if—
(a) a person is at the appointed day licensed to trade in a street under the provisions of any
local enactment; and
(b) the street becomes a licence street under this Part of this Act; and
(c) he was trading from a fixed position in the street immediately before it became a licence
street; and
(d) within two months from the appointed day he applies for a street trading licence to trade in
the street;
his application shall not be refused.
(9) Subject to subsections (4), (6) and (8) above a borough council when considering applications for
licences to trade in licence streets under this Part of this Act shall give preference to applications from
persons who immediately before the appointed day were under the provisions of any local enactment
authorised to trade in a street in the borough which is not a licence street.
(10) A borough council when considering applications for licences to carry on ice cream trading in a
licence street shall treat all applicants, whether companies, partnerships or individuals, on an equal
footing and in particular—
(a) shall not treat individuals less favourably than companies or partnerships; and

A43

(b) as between applicants who are companies or partnerships, shall not treat any particular
company or partnership more favourably than others.
(11) A licence holder may at any time surrender his licence to the borough council and it shall then
cease to be valid.
Succession
26. (1)
(a) When the holder of a licence who is an individual has specified the name and address of
a relative to whom he desires the licence to be granted—
(i) dies; or
(ii) retires having reached the normal age for retirement; or
(iii) notifies the borough council that owing to ill-health he is unable to continue to
engage in the street trading permitted by the licence, and submits evidence to satisfy
the borough council as to his ill-health;
the borough council shall not (except as provided in paragraph (b) of this subsection) grant a
licence in respect of the position or place in a street at which the former licensee was entitled
to engage in street trading under the authority of his licence until the expiration of 28 days
from the date of the death of the licensee or his retirement or receiving the notification, as the
case may be;
(b) If during the said period of 28 days the person specified by the holder of the licence, when
making application for the licence, as the relative to whom he desired the licence to be granted
in any of the events mentioned in paragraph (a) above makes application for the grant of a
licence in respect of the position or place available in the street the borough council shall, save
as provided by paragraphs (b) to (e) of subsection (6) of section 25 (Application for street
trading licences) of this Act grant a licence to that person.
(2) For the purposes of this section a person shall be treated as being related to another if the latter
is the wife, husband, father, mother, grandfather, grandmother, stepfather, stepmother, son, daughter,
grandson, granddaughter, stepson, stepdaughter, brother, sister, half-brother or half-sister of the
former and shall be deemed to be so related notwithstanding that he is so related only through an
illegitimacy or in consequence of an adoption.
Conditions of Street trading licences
27. (1) A licence granted under section 25 (Application for street trading licences) of this Act, shall -.
(a) unless it is revoked or surrendered, be valid for a period of three years from the date on
which it is granted, or for such shorter period as the borough council may determine;
(b) specify the conditions; and
(c) in the case of an individual incorporate one of the photographs of the licence holder
submitted under subsection (3) of the said section 25;
and on any occasion of the renewal of a licence, or at 1st January in any year during the currency
thereof, (whether on application by the licence holder or otherwise) or at any time on application by
the licence holder, the borough council may vary the conditions.
(2) Where a licence is granted to a company incorporated under the Companies Acts or to a
partnership to carry on ice cream trading, any individual carrying on ice cream trading in accordance
with that licence shall at all times while he is so trading carry with him a recent photograph of him
authenticated by the company or on behalf of the partnership, as the case may be, which holds the
licence.

A44

(3) The borough council may make regulations prescribing standard conditions which they may attach
to the licence on the occasion of its grant or renewal.
(4) Before making regulations under subsection (3) above, the borough council shall—
(a) publish notice of their intention to do so in a local newspaper circulating in their area, and
such notice shall—
(i) contain a draft of the resolution to which it relates; and
(ii) state that representations relating to it may be made in writing to the borough
council within such period, not less than 28 days after the publication of the notice, as
may be specified in the notice; and
(b) consult the licence holders or a body or bodies representative of them.
(5) As soon as practicable after the expiry of the period specified under subsection (4) above, the
borough council shall consider any representations relating to the proposed regulations which they
have received before the expiry of that period.
(6) After the borough council have considered those representations they may if they think fit make
regulations as mentioned in subsection (3) above and shall notify the licence holders or a body or
bodies representative of them of the making of such regulations.
(7) Without prejudice to the generality of subsection (3) above the standard conditions shall include
such conditions as may be reasonable—
(a) identifying the street or streets in which and the position or place in any such street at
which the licence holder may sell or expose or offer for sale articles or things, or offer or
provide services under the authority of the licence;
(b) identifying the class or classes of articles, things or services which the licence holder may
so sell or expose or offer for sale or provide;
(c) identifying the day or days on which and the time during which the licence holder may sell
or expose or offer for sale articles, things or services as aforesaid;
(d) identifying the nature and type of any receptacle which may be used by the licence holder
or in connection with any sale or exposure or offer for sale or provision of services and the
number of any such receptacles which may be so used;
(e) requiring that any receptacle so used shall carry the name of the licence holder and the
number of his licence;
(f) regulating the storage of receptacles or perishable goods;
(g) regulating the deposit and removal of refuse and the containers to be used for the deposit
of such refuse and their location pending its removal;
(h) requiring that the licence holder shall commence trading or exercising his rights under the
licence by a certain time on any day or forfeit his right to trade or exercise his rights under the
licence on that day from the fixed position to which his licence refers.
(8) Without prejudice to the standard conditions, the borough council may in addition attach to a
licence such further conditions as appear to them to be reasonable in any individual case.
(9) When granting a licence a borough council shall give to the licence holder a copy of the licence
which, in the case of an individual, shall bear his photograph.
Revocation or variation of licences under Part III.
28. (1) Subject to the provisions of this Part of this Act a borough council may at any time revoke a street
trading licence if they are satisfied that—
(a) owing to circumstances which have arisen since the grant or renewal of the licence, there
is not enough space in the street in which the licence holder trades for him to engage in the

A45

trading permitted by the licence without causing undue interference or inconvenience to
persons or vehicular traffic using the street; or
(b) the licence holder is trading in a class of articles, things or services which the borough
council have resolved under subsection (1) (b) of section 24 (Designation of licence streets)
of this Act not to prescribe in licences granted for the licence street in which the licence holder
trades; or
(c) the licence holder is an individual who has without reasonable excuse personally failed
fully to avail himself of his licence; or
(d) the licence holder is on account of misconduct or for any other sufficient reason unsuitable
to hold the licence; or
(e) that since the grant or renewal of the licence, the licence holder has for a period of four
weeks or more failed to pay fees or charges due to the borough council in connection with the
street trading licence or has failed to pay any charges due from him for accommodation
provided in pursuance of subsection (2) of section 33 (Receptacles and containers) of this Act;
or
(f) that since the grant or renewal of the licence, the licence holder has failed to make provision
for the suitable and adequate storage of the receptacles used by him for trading or for any
perishable goods in which he trades when trading is not taking place; or
(g) that since the grant or renewal of the licence, the licence holder has persistently failed to
remove to a place of storage the receptacles used by him for trading; or
(h) that the licence holder has persistently failed to comply with any condition of his licence.
(2) If a borough council consider that a licence could be revoked on any of the grounds mentioned in
paragraphs (a) to (c) of subsection (1) above they may instead of revoking it, vary its. conditions by
attaching further conditions—
(a) reducing the number of days in any week or the period in any one day during which the
licence holder is permitted to trade; or
(b) specifying a different licence street or position or place in any such street at which the
licence holder may sell or expose or offer for sale articles or things or offer or provide services;
or
(c) restricting the description of articles, things or services in which the licence holder is
permitted to trade.
Further provisions relating to grant, renewal or revocation of street trading licences.
29. (1) A borough council shall not—
(a) refuse to grant or renew a licence on any of the grounds mentioned in subsection (6) of
section 25 (Application for street trading licences) of this Act; or
(b) revoke or vary a licence under section 28 (Revocation or variation of licences under Part
III) of this Act; or
(c) vary a licence under subsection (1) of section 27 (Conditions of street trading licences) of
this Act;
unless they shall have given to the applicant or licence holder not less than 21 days' previous notice
in writing that objection has been or will be taken to such grant or renewal or that such revocation or
variation is proposed, specifying the ground or grounds on which their decision would be based and
giving him an opportunity to appear before the committee, sub-committee or officer determining the
matter.
(2) A borough council shall not proceed to determine any of the matters referred to in subsection (1)
above until after the expiry of the period specified in the notice given under that subsection; and in
determining any of the matters referred to, they shall consider any representations made by an
applicant or licence holder in respect of that matter.

A46

(3) A borough council shall not refuse to grant or renew and shall not revoke a licence on the ground
only that the applicant or licensee, being an individual, does not reside in the borough.
(4) If the borough council refuse to grant or renew a licence or decide to revoke or vary a licence—
(a) they shall notify the applicant or licence holder in writing of their decision and of the ground
or grounds for such refusal, revocation or variation; and
(b) they shall notify the applicant or licence holder of his rights of appeal (if any) specified in
section 30 (Part III appeals) of this Act.
Lapsing of a licence in certain cases
29A. In the case of a street trading licence which authorises street trading on land which falls within
paragraph (b) in the definition of ‘street’ in subsection (1) of section 21 (interpretation of Part III) of
this Act, the licence shall lapse if(a) the consent is discontinued by the person who gave it, or a successor in title of that person,
and the council is provided with written notice of the discontinuation of the consent by the
person who discontinues it; or
(b) the holder of the licence no longer is the owner of the land in question,
as the case may be.
Part III appeals.
30. (1) Any person aggrieved (aa) by the refusal of a borough council to renew a licence because they are not satisfied as
mentioned in subsection (4)(b) of section 25 (application for street trading licence) of this Act;
(a) by the refusal of a borough council to grant or renew a licence on any of the grounds
mentioned in subsection (6) (a) to (e) of section 25 (Application for street trading licences); or
(b) by a decision of a borough council under subsection (7) of the said section 25 to grant him
a licence either on terms mentioned in that subsection different from those on the licence
which he previously held or different from those for which he applied; or
(c) by any further condition attached by a borough council under subsection (8) of section 27
(Conditions of street trading licences) of this Act in addition to the standard conditions; or
(d) by a decision of the borough council either—
(i) to vary the conditions of a licence under subsection (2) of section 28 (Revocation or
variation of licences under Part III) of this Act; or
(ii) to revoke a licence under subsection (1) of the said section 28;
(e) by a resolution of a borough council under section 37 (Ice cream trading) of this Act;
may appeal to a magistrates' court acting for the area in which the licence street is situated.
(2) An appeal under subsection (1) above may be brought—
(a) in the case of an appeal under paragraph (a), (b), (c) or (d) of that subsection, at any time
before the expiration of the period of 21 days beginning with the date upon which notification
in writing is given of the refusal or decision;
(b) in the case of an appeal under paragraph (e) of that subsection, at any time before the
expiration of the period of 21 days beginning with the date of the second publication of the
notice required by subsection (10) of section 24 (Designation of licence streets) as applied by
the said section 37.
(3) A person desiring to appeal against such refusal or decision as is mentioned in subsection (1)
above shall give a written notice to the magistrates' court and to the borough council specifying the

A47

refusal or decision against which he wishes to appeal and the grounds upon which such appeal is
made.
(4) An appeal by either party against the decision of the magistrates' court under this section may be
brought to the Crown Court.
(5) On an appeal to the magistrates' court or to the Crown Court under this section, the court may
make such order as it thinks fit.
(6) Subject to subsections (7) to (9) below, it shall be the duty of the borough council to give effect to
the order of the magistrates' court or the Crown Court.
(7) A borough council need not give effect to the order of the magistrates' court until the time for
bringing an appeal under subsection (4) above has expired and, if such an appeal is duly brought,
until the determination or abandonment of the appeal.
(8) Where a licence holder applies for renewal of his licence, his existing licence shall remain valid—
(a) until the grant by the borough council of a new licence with the same conditions; or
(b) if the borough council refuse renewal of the licence or decide to grant a licence with
conditions different from those of the existing licence and he has a right of appeal under this
section, until the time for bringing an appeal has expired or where an appeal is duly brought,
until the determination or abandonment of the appeal; or
(c) if he has no right of appeal under this section until the borough council either grant him a
new licence with conditions different from those of the existing licence or notify him of their
decision to refuse his application.
(9) Where—
(a) a borough council decide—
(i) to vary the conditions of a licence under subsection (2) of the said section 28; or
(ii) to revoke a licence under subsection (1) of the said section 28; and
(b) a right of appeal is available to the licence holder under this section;
the variation or revocation shall not take effect until the time for bringing an appeal has expired or
where an appeal is duly brought, until the determination or abandonment of the appeal.
(10) For the avoidance of doubt, it is hereby declared that an application under section 31 of the
Supreme Court Act 1981 (application for judicial review) or under the Rules of the Supreme Court
1965 in respect of any matter which is or could be the subject of an appeal to the magistrates' court
or to the Crown Court under this section shall not be treated as an appeal for the purposes of
subsection (8) or (9) above.
Other Part III appeals
30A. (1) Any person aggrieved—
(a) by a resolution rescinding or varying a designating resolution;
(b) by a resolution under subsection (1)(b) of section 24 (Designation of licence streets) of
this Act;
(c) by a standard condition prescribed by regulations under subsection (3) of section 27
(Conditions of street trading licences) of this Act; or
(d) by the amount of a fee or charge under section 32 (Fees and charges) of this Act;
may appeal to a magistrates' court acting for the area of the borough council which passed the
resolution, prescribed the condition or determined the amount of the fee or charge (as the case may
be).

A48

(2)

An appeal under subsection (1) may be brought—
(a) in the case of an appeal under paragraph (a) or (b) of that subsection, at any time before
the expiration of the period of three months beginning with the date on which notice of the
passing of the resolution is published for the second time in accordance with subsection (10)
of section 24 (Designation of licence streets) of this Act;
(b) in the case of an appeal under paragraph (c) of that subsection, at any time before the
expiration of the period of three months beginning with the date upon which the licence holders
or a body or bodies representative of them were notified of the making of the regulations;
(c) in the case of an appeal under paragraph (d) of that subsection—
(i) if it relates to the amount of a fee payable under subsection (1) of section 32 (Fees and
charges) of this Act, at any time before the expiration of the period of three months beginning
with the date on which the fee payable is notified to the licence holders or a body or bodies
representative of them;
(ii)
if it relates to the amount of a charge under subsection (2) of section 32 (Fees and
charges) of this Act, at any time before the expiration of the period of three months beginning
with the date on which notice of the determination of the charge has been given to the licence
holders or a body or bodies representative of them.

(3) A person desiring to appeal under subsection (1) shall give written notice to the magistrates'
court and to the borough council specifying the matter about which the person is aggrieved and the
grounds upon which the appeal is made.
(4) On an appeal to a magistrates' court under this section, the court may make such order as it
thinks fit.
Temporary licences.
31. (1) A borough council may if they think fit on the receipt from any person of an application for that
purpose and accompanied by the appropriate fee grant to that person a temporary licence.
(1A) A council may grant a temporary licence in any street, whether or not it is a licensed street.
(1B) In the case of an application for a temporary licence which, if granted, would authorise street
trading on land which falls within paragraph (b) in the definition of ‘street’ in subsection (1) of section
21 (interpretation of Part III) of this Act, the applicant shall provide evidence in writing –
(a) that he has consent to trade on the land from the owner of the land in question; or
(b) that he is the owner of the land in question.
(1C) An application for a temporary licence shall not be granted, if the licence would authorise street
trading on land which falls within the said paragraph (b), unless the applicant has provided sufficient
evidence, as is mentioned in subsection (2A) of section 25 (application for street trading licence) of
this Act, to satisfy the council.
(1D) In the case of a temporary licence which authorises street trading on land which falls within the
said paragraph (b), the licence shall lapse if –
(a) the permission to trade on the land is discontinued, and the council is provided with written
notice of the discontinuance of the permission by the person who gave the permission or
by a successor in title to that person; or
(b) the holder of the licence is no longer the owner of the land in question or no longer has
sufficient interest in the land to trade on the land without the permission of another person.
(1E) The council may revoke or suspend the operation of a temporary licence held in respect of land
which falls within the said paragraph (b) if circumstances have arisen since the grant of the licence or
are about to arise which necessitates such revocation or suspension of the grounds of safety.

A49

(1F) Where a temporary licence is revoked or suspended under subsection (1E) above, the council
shall return to the licensee such proportion of any fee paid for the granting of the licence as is
appropriate, taking into account the period for which the licence was granted and the period remaining
on the licence when it was revoked or the period for which the licence was suspended, as the case
may be.
(2) A temporary licence shall be valid only for the day or period specified in the licence and—
(a) shall be in the like form as a street trading licence with such modifications therein as the
circumstances require; and
(b) shall prescribe such conditions as the borough council deem appropriate.
(3) Where the holder of a street trading licence is not for the time being exercising his rights under the
licence, a temporary licence authorising street trading in the position or place prescribed by the street
trading licence may be granted to any other person but shall be subject to the condition that it shall
cease to be valid if during the currency thereof the holder of the licence desires to resume the exercise
of his rights and gives the appropriate notice, and for the purposes of this subsection "the appropriate
notice" means—
(a) in the case of a holder of a licence who has not exercised his rights under the licence for
a period of at least 14 days, 7 days' notice;
(b) in any other case, 24 hours' notice.
(4) In this section "appropriate fee" means such fee as the borough council may have determined
under section 32 (Fees and charges) of this Act.
Fees and charges.
32.
(1) A borough council may charge such fees for the grant or renewal of a street trading licence under
this Part of this Act, the grant of a temporary licence or for the variation at the request of the licence
holder of the conditions of a street trading licence as they may determine and as may be sufficient in
the aggregate to cover in whole or in part the reasonable administrative or other costs in connection
with their functions under this Part of this Act, not otherwise recovered.
(2) A borough council may recover from licence holders such charges as may be sufficient in the
aggregate taking one year with another to cover the reasonable costs, not otherwise recovered, of—
(a) the collection, removal and disposal of refuse or other services rendered by them to such
holders; and
(b) the cleansing of streets in which street trading takes place in so far as that cleansing is
attributable to such trading; and
(c) any reasonable administrative or other costs incurred in connection with the administration
of this Part of this Act; and
(d) the cost of enforcing the provisions of this Part of this Act.
(2A) In calculating the levels of fees and charges under subsections (1) and (2) above, the council
shall disregard costs incurred by them in relation to street trading of the type described in subsection
(1ZA) of section 21 (interpretation of Part III) of this Act.
(3) A borough council may determine—
(a) that charges under subsection (2) above shall be included in a fee payable under
subsection (1) above; or
(b) that they shall be separately recoverable.
(4) A borough council may—

A50

(a) require that every application for a licence under this Part of this Act be accompanied by
the whole or part of the fee determined under subsection (1) above; and
(b) determine that the fee may be paid by instalments.
(5) Where a borough council refuse renew a licence they shall repay to the person who made the
application therefor the amount of any fee paid by him as aforesaid.
(6) A borough council may determine the fees to be charged on the grant of a temporary licence under
section 31 (Temporary licences) of this Act, and in doing so they shall have regard to the matters
specified in subsection (2) above and such fees shall be included in the computation for the purposes
of determining the fees and charges under subsections (1) and (2) above.
(7) Before determining charges to be made under subsection (2) above or varying the amount of such
charges a borough council—
(a) shall give notice of the proposed charges to licence holders or to a body or bodies
representative of them; and
(b) shall publish notice of the proposed charges in a newspaper circulating in the area in which
the licence street or streets in respect of which the charges will be applied is situated.
(7A) A notice under subsection (7) (a) above shall be accompanied by a statement showing how the
proposed charges have been computed; and any body representative of licence holders may request
the borough council to supply such further information or explanation with regard to the proposed
charges as the body may reasonably require in order to ascertain whether the proposed charges are
reasonable and have been computed in accordance with the provisions of this section.
(8) A notice under subsection (7) (a) above shall specify a reasonable period being not less than 28
days from the date of publication of the newspaper referred to in subsection (7) (b) above within which
written representations concerning the proposed charges may be made to the borough council.
(9) It shall be the duty of a borough council to
(a) consider any such representations which are made to them within the period specified in
the notice.
(b) comply with any request made under subsection (7A) above;
and where any such request is made the period so specified, if still current, shall be treated as
extended by the number of days in the period beginning with the day on which the request is made
and ending with that on which it is complied with.
(10) When a borough council have determined charges under subsection (1) above or charges under
subsection (2) above (whether originally or by way of variation of fees or charges previously
determined) they shall give notice of the fees or charges so determined and of the date on which
those charges are to be brought into effect, in the manner prescribed in subsection (7) above.
(11) Where a licence is revoked under subsection (1) (a) or(b) of section 28 (Revocation or variation
of licences under Part III) of this Act, the borough council shall refund the appropriate part of any fee
paid for the grant or renewal of the licence.
(12) Where a licence is revoked otherwise than under subsection (1) (a) or (b) of section 28
(Revocation or variation of licences under Part III) or is surrendered, the borough council may remit
or refund, as they consider appropriate, the whole or a part—
(a) of any fee paid for the grant or renewal of the licence; or
(b) of any charges recoverable under subsection (2) above.

A51

Receptacles and containers.
33. (1) A borough council may sell or let on hire or otherwise provide to any person holding a street trading
licence or a temporary licence under this Part of this Act for use by him in street trading.
(2) A borough council may provide and maintain accommodation for the storage of receptacles and
containers for the deposit of refuse arising in the course of street trading and for that purpose may—
(a) adapt any premises or erect any buildings on any land belonging to them but not already
appropriated for such purpose; and
(b) make such charges as they think fit for the use of such accommodation.
Offences.
34. Any person who (1) without reasonable excuse contravenes any of the conditions of a street trading licence or a
temporary licence; or
(2) in connection with an application for a street trading licence or a temporary licence makes a
statement which he knows to be false in a material particular; or
(3) resists or intentionally obstructs any authorised officer of a borough council in the execution of his
duties under this Part of this Act; or
(4) fails on demand without reasonable excuse in the case of an individual licence holder to produce
his licence duly signed by him and bearing his photograph, and, in the case of an individual carrying
on ice cream trading under a licence granted to a company incorporated under the Companies Acts
or to a partnership, to produce the photograph required by subsection (2) of section 27 (Conditions of
street trading licences) of this Act to an authorised officer of the borough council or to a constable;
shall be guilty of an offence and shall be liable on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding level 3
on the standard scale.
Power to remove receptacles
35. (1) Where any receptacle used by a licence holder is not removed to a place of storage on the
cessation of trading on any day it shall be lawful for the borough council to cause it to be removed to
a place of storage and to recover from the licence holder the costs incurred by them in removing and
storing the receptacle.
(2) Such charges as the borough council may fix as the cost of removing and storing a receptacle in
pursuance of subsection (1) above, shall be payable by the licence holder before the return of the
receptacle to him.
(3) The provisions of subsection (1) above are without prejudice to the power of the borough council
to prosecute the licence holder for any breach of the conditions of his licence arising from the failure
to remove the receptacle.
Employment of assistants
36. Subject to the provisions of this section a person holding a street trading licence may employ any
other person to assist him in the conduct of street trading authorised by the licence but if any person
employed by a licence holder during the temporary absence of the licence holder fails to comply with

A52

the conditions of the street trading licence held by his employer such failure shall be deemed to be a
failure by the licence holder.
Ice cream trading
37.—(l) Nothing in this Part of this Act shall apply to itinerant ice cream trading in any street unless—
(a) that street is a licence street; or
(b) the street has been designated as a prohibited street under the following provisions of this
section.
(2) If at any time it is necessary to prohibit itinerant ice cream trading in any street in the area of a
borough council which is not a licence street in the interests of preventing obstruction to traffic, or
undue interference or inconvenience to persons using that street, the borough council may by
resolution designate the street as a prohibited street and may from time to time by subsequent
resolution rescind or vary any such resolution.
(3) Before passing a resolution under this section, a borough council shall consult the Commissioner
of Police of the Metropolis and such bodies as appear to them to be representative of persons carrying
on ice cream trading in the area of the borough council.
(4) Subsections (3) to (11) of section 24 (Designation of licence streets) of this Act shall apply to a
resolution under this section as they apply to a resolution under that section.
Unlicensed street trading
38. (1) Any person who—
(a) in not the holder of a street trading licence or a temporary licence and who engages in
street trading in the borough whether or not from a stationary position; or
(b) is the holder of a street trading licence or a temporary licence and who engages in street
trading in a borough on a day or in a place not specified in that licence without the borough
council’s specific permission in writing
shall be guilty of an offence and shall be liable on summary conviction to a line not exceeding level 3
on the standard scale.
(2) In any proceedings for an offence under this section or for an offence of aiding, abetting,
counselling or procuring the commission of an offence under this section where it is shown that—
(a) any article or thing was displayed (whether or not in or on any receptacle) in any street; or
(b) any receptacle or equipment used in the provision of any service was available in any
street in such circumstances that a service was being offered;
The article, thing, receptacle or equipment concerned shall be presumed to have been exposed or
offered for sale and the receptacle or equipment shall be deemed to have been used for the purposes
for which a street trading licence was required unless it can be proved to the satisfaction of the court
that the article or thing or receptacle or equipment was brought into that street for some purpose other
than street trading.
(3) Where an offence under this section committed by a body corporate is proved to have been
committed with the consent or connivance of, or to be attributable to any neglect on the part of, any
director, manager, secretary or other similar officer of the body corporate, or any person who was
purporting to act in any such capacity, he, as well as the body corporate, shall be guilty of the offence
and liable to the same maximum penalty as the body corporate.

A53

(4) Subject to section 38A (seizure of perishable items) of this Act, if an authorised officer or a
constable has reasonable grounds for suspecting that a person has committed an offence under this
section he may seize(a) any article or thing being offered for sale, displayed or exposed for sale; or
(b) any other article or thing of a similar nature to that being offered or exposed for sale which
is in the possession of or under the control of any person who is displaying an article or thing;
or
(c) any receptacle or equipment being used by that person,
Which may be required to be used in evidence in any proceeding in respect of that offence, or may
be the subject of forfeiture under subsection (5) below, provided that no article or thing which is of a
perishable nature shall be seized under the provisions of this subsection.
(4A) An authorised officer or constable may also seize, for examination purposes, any article or thing
which he has reasonable cause to suspect may be an article or thing which is prohibited by a
specifying resolution made under subsection (1)(b) of section 24 (Designation of licence streets) of
this Act.
Unless the article or thing is required for evidential purposes it shall be returned as soon as possible
to the person from whom it was seized.
(4B) An authorised officer shall produce his authority if required to do so by the person having control
or possession of anything seized in pursuance of the powers in subsection (4) and (4A) above.
(4C)
(a) Subject to section 38B (motor vehicles) of this Act the following provisions of this
subsection shall have effect where any article or thing (including any receptacle or
equipment) is seized under subsection (4) above or is seized and retained because it is
required for evidential purposes under subsection (4A) above and references in those
provisions to proceedings are to proceedings in respect of the alleged offence in relation
to which the article or thing is seized.
(b) Subject to paragraph (e) below, following the conclusion of the proceedings the article or
thing shall be returned to the persons from whom it was seized unless –
(i)
The court orders it to be forfeited under subsection (5) below; or
(ii)
Any award of costs, have not been paid within 28 days of the making of the
order.
(ba) where after 28 days any costs awarded by the courts to the council have not been paid
to the council in full(i)
The article or thing may be disposed of in any way the council think fit; and
(ii)
Any sum obtained by the council in excess of the costs awarded by the court
shall be returned to the person to whom the article of thing belongs.
(bb) when any article or thing is disposed of by the council under this subsection the council
shall have a duty to secure the best possible price which can reasonably be obtained for that
article or thing.
(c) Subject to paragraph (d) below, where a receptacle seized under subsection (4) above is
a motor vehicle used for ice cream trading, the borough council or the Commissioner of Police
of the Metropolis (as the case may be) shall, within three days of the receipt of an application
in writing by the owner or registered keeper of the vehicle, permit him to remove it.
(d) Paragraph (c) above shall not apply, where –
(i) the owner or registered keeper of the vehicle has been convicted of an offence
under this Part of the Act or under the City of Westminster Act 1999 (c.i); or
(ii) the owner or registered keeper of the vehicle is being prosecuted for a previous
alleged offence under this Part of this Act or the said Act of 1999; or
(iii) the vehicle has been used in the commission of such an offence or previous alleged
offence;

A54

If the offence or previous alleged offence was committed or is alleged to have been committed
no more than three years before the seizure and (in the case of an alleged offence) the
proceedings are continuing.
(e) If no proceedings are instituted before the expiration of a period of 28 days beginning with
the date of seizure, or any proceedings, instituted within that period are discontinued, at the
expiration of that period or, as the case may be, on the discontinuance of the proceedings, the
article or thing shall be returned to the person from whom it was seized unless it has not
proved possible, after diligent enquiry, to identify that person or ascertain his address.
(f) Paragraph (g) below applies where the article, thing, receptacle or equipment is not
returned because(i) it has not proved possible to identify the person from whom it was seized or ascertain
his address; or
(ii) the person from whom it was seized and the owner (if different) have disclaimed or
refused to accept it
(g) where this paragraph allies, the council may make a complaint to the magistrates court for
a disposal order under section 38C (disposal orders) of this Act (whether or not proceedings
for an offence under this section have been commenced).
(5) Subject to subsection (6) below the court by or before which a person is convicted of an offence
under this section or for an offence of aiding, abetting, counselling or procuring the commission of an
offence under this section may order anything produced to the court, and shown to the satisfaction of
the court to relate to the offence, to be forfeited and dealt with in such manner as the court may order.
(6) The court shall not order anything to be forfeited under subsection (5) above where a person
claiming to be the owner of or otherwise interested in it applies to be heard by the court, unless an
opportunity has been given to him to show cause why the order should not be made and in considering
whether to make such an order a court shall have regard(i) to the value of the property; and
(ii) to the likely financial and other effects on the offender of the making of the order (taken
together with any other order that the court contemplates making)
(6A) For the avoidance of doubt the court may order forfeiture notwithstanding that the value of the
article, thing, receptacle or equipment exceeds the maximum penalties referred to in this section.
(7) An authorised officer shall produce his authority if required to do so by the person having care or
control of the article or thing seized in pursuance of the powers in subsection (4) above.
(8)
(a) This subsection shall have effect where –
(i) an article, thing or receptacle is seized under subsection (4) or (4A) above; and
(ii)
(A) not less than six months have passed since the date of the seizure and no information has
been aid against any person for an offence under this section in respect of the acts or
circumstances which occasioned the seizure; or
(B) proceedings for such an offence have been brought and either the person charged has
been acquitted (whether or not an appeal and the time for appealing against or challenging
the acquittal (where applicable) has expired without an appeal or challenge being brought, or
the proceedings (including any appeal) have been withdrawn by, or have failed for want of
prosecution by, the person by whom the original proceedings were brought.
(b) When this subsection has effect a person who has or at the time of seizure had a legal interest in
the article, thing or receptacle seized may recover compensation from the borough council or (where
it is seized by a constable) the Commissioner of Police of the Metropolis by civil action in the County
Court in respect of any loss suffered by him as a result of the seizure and any charges under section
22 (fees and charges) of This Act.

A55

(c) The court may not make an order for compensation under paragraph (b) above unless it is satisfied
that seizure was not lawful under subsection (4) or (4A) above.
Seizure of perishable items
38A. (1) No item which is of a perishable nature (in this section referred to as a "perishable item") shall
be seized under the provisions of subsection (4) of section 38 (unlicensed street trading) of this Act
unless the authorised officer or constable gives a certificate under subsection (2) below to the person
from whom the item is seized.
(2) Where a perishable item is seized under the said section 38, the person from whom it is seized
must be given a certificate—
(a) stating the effect of subsection (4) below and subsection (6) of the said section 38;
(b) giving the address from which the item may be collected;
(c) informing the recipient that if he is not the owner of the item, then he should give the
owner the information referred to in paragraphs (a) and (b) above.
(3) The council or the police shall store any perishable item seized under the said section 38 at an
appropriate temperature.
(4) If the person from whom a perishable item was so seized fails to collect it within 48 hours of the
seizure the council or the police may dispose of it.
(5) When any perishable item is disposed of by the council under subsection (4) above, the council
shall have a duty to secure the best possible price which can reasonably be obtained for it.
(6) Paragraphs (a) to (d) of subsection (4C), and subsections (5) and (6) of the said section 38 shall
apply to perishable items seized under that section only in cases where the item concerned has not
been disposed of by the council at the conclusion of the proceedings in respect of the alleged offence
in relation to which the item was seized.
(7) Paragraphs (e) and (f) of subsection (4C) of the said section 38 shall apply to perishable items
seized under that section only in cases where the item concerned has not been disposed of by the
council at the expiration of the period mentioned in the said paragraph (e); otherwise subsections (9)
to (12) below shall apply.
(8) Subsection (8) of the said section 38 shall apply with the omission of paragraph (c) in respect
of perishable items seized under that section only in cases where the item concerned has not been
disposed of by the council by the time the circumstances mentioned in paragraph (a)(ii)(A) or (B)
arise; otherwise subsections (9) to (12) below shall apply.
(9) Subsection (12) below shall have effect where the council have disposed of a perishable item
under subsection (4) above and any of the following conditions apply.
(10) The first condition is that no proceedings in respect of the alleged offence in relation to which
the item was seized are instituted before the expiration of a period of 28 days beginning with the date
of seizure of the item, or any such proceedings instituted within that period are discontinued.
(11) The second condition is that—
(a) not less than six months have passed since the date of the seizure and no information
has been laid against any person for an offence under the said section 38 in respect of the
acts or circumstances which occasioned the seizure; or
(b) proceedings for such an offence have been brought and either the person charged has
been acquitted (whether or not on appeal) and the time for appealing against or challenging
the acquittal (where applicable) has expired without an appeal or challenge being brought, or
the proceedings (including any appeal) have been withdrawn by, or have failed for want of
prosecution by, the person by whom the original proceedings were brought.
(12) When this subsection has effect a person who has, or at the time of seizure had, a legal interest
in the item seized may recover compensation from the borough council or (where it is seized by a
constable) the Commissioner of Police of the Metropolis by civil action in the County Court in respect
of any loss suffered by him as a result of the seizure and any such compensation shall not be included
in the computation for calculating charges under section 32 (fees and charges) of this Act.

A56

Motor vehicles
38B. (1) Subsection (4) below applies where the following conditions are met.
(2) The first condition is that where, in ascertaining the identity of the person from whom a vehicle
was seized under subsection (4) or (4A) of section 38 (unlicensed street trading) of this Act, a borough
council has, before the expiry of 14 days from the date of the seizure, made a request to the Secretary
of State for the supply of relevant particulars.
(3) The second condition is that those particulars have not been supplied to the council before the
date after which that council would, but for this section, have to return the vehicle in accordance with
subsection (4C)(e) of that section.
(4)

Where this subsection applies, the council must return the vehicle to its owner if—
(a) no proceedings are instituted in respect of the alleged offence in respect of which the
vehicle was seized before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning with the date on which
the relevant particulars are supplied; or
(b) any such proceedings instituted within that period are discontinued,
at the expiry of that period or on the discontinuance of the proceedings, as the case may be.
(5)
If the council seeks to return a vehicle in accordance with the said subsection (4C)(e) or
subsection (4), but the person to whom the council seeks to return the vehicle cannot be found or
disclaims or refuses to accept the vehicle, the council may make a complaint for a disposal order in
respect of the vehicle under section 38C (disposal orders) of this Act.
(6) In this section, "relevant particulars" are particulars relating to the identity of the owner of the
vehicle contained in the register of mechanically propelled vehicles maintained by the Secretary of
State under the Vehicle Excise and Registration Act 1994 (c 22).
(7) The owner of a vehicle for the purposes of this section shall be taken to be the person by whom
the vehicle is kept.
(8) In determining who was the owner of a motor vehicle at any time, it shall be presumed that the
owner is the person in whose name the vehicle is at that time registered under the Vehicle Excise and
Registration Act 1994.
Disposal orders
38C. (1) This section applies in respect of a complaint made by a borough council for a disposal order
in respect of—
(a) an article or thing under subsection (4C)(f)(ii) of section 38 (unlicensed street trading) of
this Act; or
(b) a motor vehicle under subsection (5) of section 38B (motor vehicles) of this Act,
and such articles, things and motor vehicles are together referred to as "seized items" in this section.
(2) In respect of a complaint to which this section applies, a magistrates' court may, if it is satisfied
that the council has made reasonable efforts to identify the person from whom the seized item was
seized or its owner, as the case may be, or has made reasonable efforts to return the seized item, it
may make an order authorising the complainant council—
(a) to dispose of the seized item in question; and
(b) after payment out of any proceeds arising from the disposal of the expenses incurred in
the seizure, storage and disposal, to apply the balance, if any, towards the costs of the council

A57

as mentioned in paragraphs (a) to (d) of subsection (2) of section 32 (fees and charges) of
this Act.
(3) The court shall not make a disposal order under subsection (2) above where a person claiming
to be the owner of or otherwise interested in the seized item in question applies to be heard by the
court, unless an opportunity has been given to him to show cause why the order should not be made.
(4)

Subsection (5) below applies where—
(a) a person appears before the court under subsection (3) above to show why the order
should not be made; and
(b) the court makes an order under subsection (2) above authorising the council to dispose
of the item; and
(c) the seized item in question is not of sufficient value to defray the expenses of seizing
and storing it; and
(d) the court is satisfied that the person mentioned in paragraph (a) above was the owner
of the seized item in question or was the person from whom it was seized, as the case may
be.

(5) Where this section applies, the court may order that the person mentioned in subsection (4)(a)
above pay the expenses, or the balance of the expenses, reasonably incurred by the council in seizing
and storing the seized item in question.
(6)

In considering whether to make an order under subsection (2) above a court shall have regard—
(a) to the value of the seized item;
(b) to the likely financial and other effects on the offender of the making of the order (taken
together with any other order that the court contemplates making); and
(c) any other circumstances considered to be relevant.

(7) The court may make a disposal order under this section notwithstanding that the value of the
seized item would exceed the maximum penalty for the offence in respect of which the seized item
had originally been seized had the said offence been prosecuted to conviction.
(8) For the purposes of this section, "owner" in respect of a vehicle, has the same meaning as it
has for the purposes of the said section 38B.
Savings
39. (1) Nothing in this Part of this Act shall affect—
(a) section 13 of the Markets and Fairs Clauses Act 1847 (prohibition of sales elsewhere than
in a market or in shops etc.) as applied by any other Acts;
(b) section 56 of the Food Act 1984 (prohibition of certain sales during market hours);
(c) the sale or exposure or offer for sale by London Regional Transport or (as the case may
be) a designated company (within the meaning of the Transport (London) Act 1969) of
refreshments at any shelter or other accommodation provided by either of them under section
65 (Refreshment shelters etc.) of the London Passenger Transport Act 1938.
(2) Nothing in this Part of this Act shall afford a defence to a charge in respect of any offence at
common law or under an enactment other than this Part of this Act.
Local enactments relating to street trading repealed
40. (1) Subject to subsection (2) below, the enactments specified in column (2) of Schedule 2 to this Act,
so far as they relate to any part of Greater London, shall cease to have effect in a borough as from
the appointed day for that borough to the extent specified in column (3) of that Schedule.

A58

(2) Notwithstanding the repeal of the enactments specified in column (2) of Schedule 2 to this Act,
any licence granted by a borough council under any of those enactments which authorises street
trading in the borough and which was in force immediately before the appointed day shall continue in
force until three months after the appointed day or until the determination of any application made by
the holder of the licence under section 25 (Application for street trading licences) of this Act, whichever
is the later.
Saving for sales in legal markets or fairs
41. In the case of any market or fair held in pursuance of any statute, royal markets or licence, royal
charter or letters patent, or as of right from time immemorial, fairs, nothing in this Part of this Act shall
affect the sale or exposure or offer for sale of goods in any such market or fair by any person who
has paid a toll to, or is acting under the written authority of, a person holding or entitled to hold such
market or fair or entitled to receive tolls in respect of sales made or stalls or stands occupied in such
market or fair.

A59

ANNEX 9

STANDARD CONDITIONS - STREET TRADING - TEMPORARY STREET TRADING PERMIT
and SPECIALITY MARKET LICENCES
These conditions are attached to every Temporary Street Trading Permit and Speciality
Market licence issued. The conditions may only be removed or varied following an application
determined by the Council.
1.

The licence must be displayed in a prominent position and must be produced
immediately upon request from an authorised local authority officer or the police.

2.

The licence is only valid at the specific location(s) and on the day(s) and time(s) shown
on the front of this licence.

3.

The Licence holder shall take out, and maintain at all times, public liability insurance
cover with a minimum liability of £5,000,000.

4.

The licence holder will be responsible for the good conduct, cleanliness, litter and safety
of the licensed area at all times.

5.

The Licence holder shall make proper arrangements for the storage and removal of all
refuse and litter generated by their trading activities. Stall holders shall cooperate with
all proper arrangements specified for refuse collection and disposal.

6.

The licence holder shall not cause disturbance, nuisance or undue interference or
inconvenience to persons using a Street, or annoyance to any business or resident.

7.

Street trading shall not be carried out in a way which causes a risk to the safety of
persons using a Street or to any business or resident.

8.

Street trading may only be carried on in a location with sufficient space. It must not be
carried on in a way that causes an obstruction to pedestrians or traffic.

9.

The public highway must not be interfered with, changed, damaged or altered in any
way.

10. The licence holder shall, at all times, make sure that all electrical, mechanical, and any
other equipment whatsoever associated with street trading shall be placed, installed,
maintained, and operated in accordance with the provisions of the Health & Safety at
Work etc. Act 1974. Certification of safety may be required by the authority on demand.
Failure to provide safety certificates may result in the authority requiring the equipment
to be removed immediately.
11. All goods and other equipment must be completely removed from the highway at the
end of the hours permitted by this licence unless written exemption is given by the
licensing authority.
12. The licence holder must comply with any direction given by an authorised local authority
officer, their agents, the police, or other member of the emergency services. This may
include directions to immediately remove items.
13. The licence holder shall indemnify the Council from any claim in respect of any injury,
damage or loss arising directly or indirectly out of the grant of this licence.

A60

14. The licence holder shall ensure commodities are only purchased from an authorised
wholesaler and shall produce receipts for the same upon request for inspection. An
authorised wholesaler means an established warehouse or trade outlet with a fixed
address and not a van or other street trader, even if they claim they are part of, or acting
on behalf of, an authorised wholesaler who provides full itemised VAT receipts.
15. The licence holder shall ensure all receipts for commodities purchased include the
following details:
a.

Seller’s name and address;

b.

Seller’s company details, if applicable;

c.

Seller’s VAT details, if applicable.

Additional condition for traders licensed for the Hot and Cold Food commodity:
16. The licence holder will ensure that the food business operator complies with the
requirements of Regulation EC No. 852/2004 (food hygiene standards) and in particular
Chapter III Requirements for movable and/or temporary premises.

